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Jones: And he has ensure now that he is doing that for you, just to be clear. Ed has a couple of guys
that work directly with him at CVE that are constantly keeping an eye on grant funding
opportunities. | don't know if you guys have ever had a chance to meet Stan Kosilesky. He's been
the guy that's done a lot of our grant application. He previously worked for the Cuyahoga County
and then came to work for CVE. He worked, you know, handling a lot of the funding. So, we have
people that are out there looking for those opportunities. Davis: Okay, because you always have, |
don't want to say vou always have. But the majority 99% of these are with that OPWC or the
other... Jones: CDBG is another source of funding. NOACA funds a lot of the County routes, you
know, busier roads that are maybe like on the emergency network. So, those types of things, but
OPWC is definitely a reliable source of funding. That's one where, because of the fact that you're a
Village. You do qualify for additional funding through OPWC for the small government program.
So that is one example of you guys get more funding. Williams: So, for this particular project if we
did not do it. What would not get done is the street on our side within our Village limits? Jones:
Correct, there's also some drainage work that has to occur as part of this. Again, the bulk of it is for
the road. Hardin: Madam chair, would you ask that question again. What did you just say?
Williams: If we did not do this project, this one with the trails, what would not get done? Our road
and some drainage... Jones: Right. the road wouldn't get repaved, the drainage wouldn't happen.
And then of course, the connector trail, which again, ves, is on the Glenwillow side. But connects
your system to another system, will also not get done. Davis: So, would Glenwillow still get this
$250,000 or they would not? Jones: No, our application to OPWC was joint between us and
Glenwillow. So, if one side backs out of the project dies. Hardin: How did this come about?
Whose idea was this one? Jones: I think Glenwillow is the lead on this if I'm not mistaken. Mayor
is that true? Gottschalk: Glenwillow is the lead, when Bedford owns half of Forbes Road, between
Broadway and Northfield and we owned the other half. We never paid Bedford everything up front.
When they were the ones who needed to have the work done. And so, I did the same thing here. [
said, look, I'm not going to pay this kind of money, but I'll do it over 20 years. So that's why I got it
down, whether it be five or six thousand per year. Otherwise, this is just too much money. I didn't
see the feasibility at this point. But $6,000 per year, that's not a problem. Williams: So, any more



questions on that project? What would be very helpful at this peint. And I also asked Brian at the
very start. If we could get a spreadsheet of what's due this year, what's due possibly in 2025 to 2026
and what's due over 20 years, for all of these projects. And if you could include any other payments
for any projects that have already happened that we have to pay in future years. So we have an idea,
because it looks like all of those come from SCMR. But, what's coming from that fund (inaudible).
Jones: [ will have to sit down with Ed on that because obviously I don't have the history. Williams:
That would be helpful. Jones: I have a pretty good handle on what you see before you. Williams: 1
mean, it's great to have these separate and to understand them in full detail. Jones: Sure, yeah,
evaluate each one on its merits. Nikelic: Madam Chair, could you just let us know. I know a couple
of them you mentioned we cannot push. But could you just let us know which of these we could
push out? That does not have to be done in 2024, if any at all. Jones: Sure. Gottschalk: Weli, [
don't see (inaudible) industry, which brings in the tax dollars. Williams: Can you let him answer
that question directly. Gottschalk: [ want to make a point; [ didn't need to have that here. All I'm
saying is that these are roads that are commercial really, in most cases. And it's important to satisfy
our businesses that are paying big dollars that are here and staying here. You notice by the way,
another entity in the sense that, well, many are working at home. So, it's important to satisfy this.
But as [ say next year, and that was why I was pointing out that on the rating of the streets. As you
can see now, we wouldn't be in any position doing anything this year, but we could next year. Well,
let's see how it's all laid out, Brian has assured me that, in fact, the way he's budgeted this thing. We
can meet everything that's been said. Nikolic: Rest assured Mayor, I just want to say we understand
the importance of why they were chosen. Gottschalk: Yeah. Nikolic: We hear you when you say
that our industry is important. But in the totality of looking at everything, when we start to lay
things out. If there's a necessity to push anything, we would need to. But in totality, just to have that
information while we're all here. We can understand what could be pushed. But we do understand
the importance, and we definitely understand the idea of supporting our industry. Gottschalk: Plus,
by the way, by having these out of the way. There's not much left to do on major streets because it
will be basically done. Jones: Right. Gottschalk: Right, so now we can focus on everything.
Jones: But to answer your question, honestly. I think the only one that even is remotely possible to
push would be the second phase of Tryon. That one, we don't have any funds committed to it at this
point. And that's on the application that we're going to make. That's about the only one [ would say.
Nikolie: And that was the only one that the $68,000 was due 20235, Jones: Right, there's no funds
on that for 2024. Nikolie: So, | guess [ was asking about funds required in 2024, all funds required.
Jones: [ don't think any of these could be pushed. Any of these if you did push them, the project
would die, and you'll lose the matching funds. And you can also be on the hook for some other costs
that you've already spent on some of them as well. Nikolic: Okay. Jones: So, that's your answer,
it’s very difficult, if not impossible to push any of these. Davis: Can we get an idea or the actual
cost of what we've already paid for these different projects that he's just mentioned. That he says
we've already put money on hold for? Thompson: (inaudible). Davis: [s that just in engineering
costs as well? Okay... Jones: Yeah, none of them had any construction costs. I mean unless you
unless you count the Broadway signal. Since that was, you know, a number of years ago, but that's
kind of separate. Williams: So, Councilwoman Davis is asking, per project what we've already
expended and essentially Engineering fees. Jones: Okay. Hardin: Madam Chair, [ think the
Finance Director, did I understand you just say. That you are going to do it tonight? You were
telling us how you were going to make all of this happen. Thompson: Yeah. Hardin: And which
projects you were talking about? We're talking actual dollars tonight. Thompson: Yeah, just a
quick summary, just make a comment. But i did put the budget together, after all these components
in totality from Matt. That was approximately $2.8 million, construction was approximately five
hundred and some thousand dollars to engineer. When you add those together, it is about $3.3
million. When you take into account you're loans, your OPC... Williams: Is this a document that
you have? Thompson: Just numbers, I've been looking at this so long. We can probably recap and
bring it back to you. So $3.3 million, $2.8 was construction, five hundred something thousand was
engineer. We'll put this on paper. When we took into account all the disbursements, loans, and take



into account we got the $500,000 ARPA money. And then the reimbursements, the number for the
books is in excess of about $900,000. So, if you ook at this budget that I gave you, one pager, fund
201. It would show you from the top, like the revenues. Even if we set aside the conversation, we
had to do a direct disbursement as we dialogued with Ms. Howse. We still have those funds. So
you'll be bringing in approximately $1.4 million with all those variables. Taking into account
$937,000 for the miscellancous contractual cost. The Engineer fees for Ed is $403,000, because
some of his fees, like Matt said, is going to be reimbursement from OPWC and different
organizations. You add in some electric, utilities, repairs, and maintenance for a few of Tommy's
vehicles, gasoline costs, ISIS snow removal, striping in the streets. That was probably $1.4 too, so
that fund at the end of the year. will be projected to end with $411. Now, one of the big components
is, the $310,000. I got that schedule to your transfers. And those can be pushed in as I evaluate the
disbursements and reimbursements throughout the year. 1 got $310,000 scheduled in, and even with
the $310,000 scheduled into your General Fund transfers budget. I still got the general fund at this
point, ending at $357,000. Now, if we take into account receiving the dollars from the TIF dollars.
And [ relieve this 201 fund and do a direct disbursement to some of the TIF dollars. Then the
general fund balance can raise up over in excess of $400,000. So that's the way [ got the budget. But
every project that he has on those sheets, I summarized in the budget. And it is doable, with that
balance being there. Williams: I heard you say you've looked at the numbers a lot. Thompson:
Yes. Williams: So, what [ would ask is, if, you know, there's going to be a presentation like this.
With all of these project numbers, that you put that into the report for us. Because... Thompson:
This is the report, 1 was dissecting everything... Williams: What's the report? Thompson: With
everything on the project costs. Williams: Okay, if you could put what you just said in terms of the
funds and how you expect that to show up in the general revenue for each of these budget accounts.
[f you could have that in a sheet where we can read and follow along. So, we can get a level of
understanding, you just reciting it is not sufficient. Thompson: Okay. Williams: So, if you could
put that together as soon as possible. Thompson: Yeah. Hardin: [ guess I'm a little a little
dumbfounded. Because when you said you had already figured it out and the Mayor went yes, and
we were going yes. So, after all of this we went through, [ thought you were going to have that
written down. And [ would have been a yes. Thompson: He's got everything in here, just a lot of
components. And, you know, it took some time to go through all these. Hardin: So now it would
have been icing on the cake. Thompson: That's what i have here, this is my icing, showing you
how you can... Hardin: But, you should have had it written out so we could follow it. Because we
definitely understand. Jones: I will say this, the numbers, we were still working on it as recently as
today. So, I think, you know... Gottschalk: Certainly Friday. Jones: Yeah, certainly Friday, we
spent Friday afternoon in my office going through everything. So, you know, these just came
together. Hardin: That is what we need, now that you gave us the details. Williams: And you say
you've been looking at them over and over, so you can recite them to us. That's not just today or
yesterday, or Friday. Gottschalk: For us. Thompson: But that all kind of compiled... Jones:
We've been going.... Williams: But you understand we can't follow without an actual document,
right? Thompson: Yeah, that's why I brought it to you in the management summary here on the
sheet for the fund. Williams: Can you explain to us how the 201 and the 6602 fund relate?
Thompson: The 201 is the fund and 6602 is the department code. So sorry, if that's a little
confusing. But all of this is your SCMR fund, so I'm showing a receipt. When you go to the move to
the special revenue funds, you have to dissect them. So, you got revenues up top and expenses at
the bottom. Usually, like with the general fund, you have a run on the departments, and you get one
big number. But just straight answer to 6602, it's not a separate fund. It is just a department code of
the 201 on the expense side. Williams: So, in 2024, in addition to the Engineer contract. what we
will pay in fees is approximately $403,000. Thompson: Yes, it's a little higher than that. But some
of the if you remember the conversation. Some of these engineering fees, this is the cost we have to
come up with. Which we have in the books for the $403,000. Davis: So, the $403,000 is only for
these projects? Thomspon: Yes. Nikolic: Madam chair, so looking at this, if we go back to what
Ms. Howse said about the 202 and 203 funds. There's $55,000 that you're totaling into this §1.4



million. So, what we assumed is that $55,000 is no longer available? Thompson: No, it's a reliable
source of income, but [ can set a budget to do a direct disbursement from those funds. Williams: It
doesn't belong here. Nikolic: Right. Thompson: Historically, I have transferred the dollars. But |
think the direct disbursement date are reliable source of funds. Nikelic: So, you're saying we will
still have it. It's just the way it is set up here on this form is that it's not accurate. Williams: [t
should be separate, because when you have account 201. Then you have from fund 202, but that's
not account 201. Thompson: Yeah, and I accumulate the dollars in the 202 and 203, just at the end
of the year. Williams: Right, that's exactly what I'm saying, it's not 201 fund. Thompsen: Right.
Williams: You got it in 201... Thompson: Transferred out, but we can do a direct disbursement
from those funds. Nikolic: Because it transfers into 202, and 203 comes from the general fund.
Thompson: No, the money from 202 and 203 comes from us like County and state. Williams: So,
we also need the 202 and 203 funds to see those as well. Thompson: You can see them on your
cash report. You can see how it accumulated in the big report. Williams: Right, in the context of
what you provided us, right? Thompson: Yes. Williams: You're saying that 202 and 203 can be
used. Not as you transfer from this, to SCMR, but it can be used. So, we would need to see those
funds in the same way that we're seeing 201. You follow what I'm saying? Thompson: Yeah, I'll
have it set up for you. Hardin: Because you got us all the way to the 411, and that's where it
stopped. Thompson: 411 is your (inaudible) and expenditures for the year. Hardin: I got that but
in your explanation, that's where we stopped. And then you you were going back and forth on how
you would pay it back. Williams: Ms. Howse. Howse: [ apologize, 1 must have misunderstood,
Brian. In the past, you said you have done this. So, then there's appropriation legislation that shows.
Thompson: Yes. Howse: Council authorizing transfers coming out of those 201. So, you actually
have a document in the in your budget that shows authorization of transfer out of 201 and 202, in
legislation. Thompson: Yeah, passed years | would have it in the budget showing those dollars
going up. Williams: That's different, what she is asking is if there is legislation? Thompson: Yes, it
would be in the appropriation legislation. You would have the documentation of the legislation.
Howse: So, your last document, your last ordinance, you did. The appropriations amendment the
final? There's a transfer line item in the appropriation that shows $41.699 coming out in 2022. And
then in 2023, you had legislation approving $43.000 coming out of 202. Thompson: Yes. Howse:
The one I'm concerned about is the state, in the fact that you're doing a transfer. And I'll refer you to
the ordinance ['m talking about in the O.R.C. Where it says those are restricted funds. It doesn't stop
you from expenses, but the 203 fund, the state, is for state roads. That's all I'm saying... Thompson:
Okay. Howse: But I just would like to see that ordinance. Because I'm surprised [ didn't ask that
question. Thompson: Okay. Nikolic: So, with $411.58 left, meaning this is all you're projecting
that we're going to appropriate to engineering. Thompson: For 2024, yes. Nikolic: And this is
assuming they do nothing else. Thompson: Yea, that one particular line item for the 403 would
accommodate all his engineering expenses and disbursements from OPWC. Usually, engineering
fee is like five hundred and something thousand, but this would be our portion. Nikelic: Okay,
that's fine, but all I'm saying is if anything comes up. Where we would need them to do something
else, if there's other projects. As Councilperson Davis mentioned, is there no leeway for us to... |
mean, [ guess we'd have to look at the total budget. But $411 doesn't give us much leeway to have
access to our Engineers for other things, is that right? Williams: You have to transfer from the
general revenue fund if you want more funds to be in there, correct? Thompson: Probably.
Williams: Probably, where else would you get it from? Thompson: We maybe have projects where
you're getting full reimbursement from a grant. | would have to pay it, so it can be different
variables. Nikolic: Is this customary for this to be this close? Only $400 [eft in the fund at the end
of the year? Thompson: Maybe over the last 2 or 3 years. ['ve had maybe between $200 to $4,000
in those funds. Nikolic: After all projects said and done. Thompsen: Yes. Gottschalk: But there
weren't nearly as many projects as there are this year. As you can see, the scope of what we are
doing here. You know, Forbes Road, Oak Leaf, Tryon, Broadway, and First Pace. Thompson: You
can see the history here. See where it says misc. contractual going back to 2021. So, this was
definitely one of the highest. Davis: And this increase is due to who? [ mean, how we went from



the $903 final revenue to the $1.4 million. Thompsen: That's related to the advice from the
reimbursements and disbursements that the Engineer (inaudible), so i plugged that in as revenue.
Davis: Okay. Williams: Any more questions? Howse: | got one quick question, maybe it's for the
Engineer. First of all, this is really nice, this presentation. My question is that you have broken out
your engineering cost, right? Jones: Yeah. Howse: So, this is for 2024. Jones: No, not necessarily,
so up top that's the whole project. So, you're going to have to read the project summaries to see
where the breakdown is and what year that falls in. Howse: So, he budgeted four hundred
something thousand less, Brian this is for you. Thompson: Yes. Howse: That's enough to cover
this expenses for 2024? Thompson: Yes. Jones: Yeah, we're looking at it like, it's close to a half
million. But a portion of that is direct disbursement of OPWC grant. Howse: Don't we have an
option to do a direct disbursement, for most of them? Jones: We typically use direct disbursements
(inaudible), it's very unusual that we wouldn't. Scruggs: I've just been trying to calculate as our
Engineer has been sharing with us. What was due now, what was due later. And from the very first
project for 2024, we needed to disperse $15,000. Then the very next project, it was $10,000. Then
the very next project, it was $284,000. Gottschalk: That 10,000 was going to be eliminated through
the TIF. Seruggs: So, $274,000. Williams: That is a different one. Gottschalk: That was for
project number 2 to get $10,000. Scruggs: So, the $270,001 was supposed to come down $100,000
because it was going to come from the hotel. And then there was another $48,400 on the next
project. Then a $25,000 on the next project. And then all the way, i put at the bottom. There was
$77,000, which could potentially be done if it's approved. But it hadn't been approved just yet. So
just looking at that 2024, [ didn't even tell you about 2025. That's over $400,000 right there, just for
2024. Just that we need to and I haven't even added those numbers up. But just writing those out,
that's over $400,000. We need to figure it out if we're going to do those for 2024 immediately.
Thompson: That's why I had the $937,000 scheduled in to cover the four. And the appropriations
we have to expend and get the reimbursements back. Because | have to make those expenditures. So
that's why the appropriations are going way higher than what you're looking at. Gottschalk: Each
year the expenditures are versus what we have okay. Williams: Any more questions? That was a
total of $829,400, so [ hear you saying the transfers in are nine hundred and something thousand?
Thompson: No, we only need a transfer in on top of the revenue portion of about $310,000. To
balance it all out, to cover the projects. Williams: For the $829,000? Thompson: Yeah, also keep
in mind, I had that $500,000 I'm paying too for the ARPA funds. Gottschalk: | mean understand
that the...Williams: One second before you start there, because it is 7:48pm, and we didn't expect
that presentation at all. So, it's throwing us off of what we had planned for today. So, just in the
future, if you going to invite someone to do a presentation, let me know. So, we can rearrange what
we were going to go over. Before we do that, [ wanted to just have a conversation about monthly
finance reports amongst Council. If you take a look at that sheet. Just want to see if we have any
additional reports that we want to receive monthly from the Finance Director. So, we have the up-
to-date payroll register to receive that monthly, the statement of cash, the detailed revenue report, a
detailed expense report, a check run, I noticed you also called it a payment line prior times. And
Council President Nikolic asked that it be sorted by fund to make it easier for us to follow. The next
report will be a detailed encumbrance report, monthly detailed credit card statements for all Village
accounts, and monthly invoices for the Law Department. I'm not sure if there's any other invoices
we want to receive monthly to follow. Then every quarter, the 941 form that has been filed. Not just
what you intend to file, but what has actually been submitted to the IRS. And then a debt schedule, T
don't know if you I don't know if you make payments monthly or quarterly. Thompson: Kind of
like semi-annual, | will give you a debt schedule you can follow. Williams: Okay, so then we
would need to get that twice a year. Thompson: Okay. Williams: Are there any other reports you
all would like to receive? Nikelic: So, I know I spoke with Carlean the last time she was here. And
[ know she mentioned that we get the finances from you on a monthly basis regarding recreation.
But per Charter, it's supposed to be per event. So, we can look at how many people were there, what
was the event, how much was spent. And so, we can start to get a better idea of what each event is
costing and how many people are attending. So, when we start making decisions on whether or not



we want to continue with certain events. Or if we want to do certain things or how we want to fund
certain projects. We need something clearer where we can look at it in one report. I asked her, but
I'm asking you because I'm sure you would be the one to do it. But a way to look per event, what
was spent itemized. So, even if it's the lunches, I saw you have the lunches. But for each event, for
each thing it should be itemized, attendance, what was spent. So, we can look at it monthly and see
what events occurred in recreation. Who came and how much was spent, going forward.
Thompson: I can definely give you a report on the summary basis. Carlean is really more hands on
attendees and things like that. So, it will have to be a collaboration. Nikolic: Work together, yes,
because it should come from her. Per Charter, it should come from her. But I'm telling you sort of
the expectations. So, when you work with her, you'll understand what we're looking for.
Thompson: Yeah, okay. Williams: So, that's an event expense detail for every event that we have
in the Village. Attendance, all expenses for the event. Nikolic: All itemized expenses, and 1 sent
her the paragraph from the Charter that lists out every single thing. I haven't committed it to
memory, but just ask her to forward you the email. Williams: We have the Charter in front of us,
can you just... Nikolic: Okay, sure. Thompson: This number four is going to show you her detailed
expenses per month. Like I said, I'll talk to you about the attendance. But that number four is going
to show you that detailed expense report if you hone in to her fund 204. Nikelic: T understand it's
there, but [ saying something that we don't have to do the legwork to understand. Williams: And
not even do the legwork, we wouldn’t know which expenses are attributed to each of the events.
Williams: We wouldn't know that unless someone put those together for us. To be able to know
that is what supported that event. Nikolic: Exactly and that's the point. So, we can get a very clear
idea for each event. Because what you're giving is a list of everything. Thompson: Right. Nikolic:
And when I say legwork, meaning we'd have to piece it together to try and figure it out by date or
whatever. But for her, [ mean, I'm sure she keeps her attendance sheets, and she does that. So, |
mean, I'm sure it's not a huge deal, but just for us, we'd appreciate that. Thompson: All right, T will
work with her. Matlock: We also need a lead report. And when [ say lead report meaning, vacation
used, and sick leave used per department. Thompson: I have turned that in a couple of times. How
often do you want that report? Matlock: Do it monthly for right now until we can get caught up.
Thompson: Okay. Williams: So, vacation and sick [eave we've approved every month. Matlock:
Right. Williams: Okay. Thompson: You guys reviewed the one I gave you, right? Williams: Yes,
we did, and we've just added that to the monthly finance report. So being able to see that each
month. Thompson: Okay. Williams: Are there any others? Davis: 1 still need December's
Huntington account. You have me, July through November, but not December. Thompson:
Sometimes they might have, like the dates, like a month... Davis: Right, I checked ... Thompson:
Which one you're saying? Davis: December of 2023, and then up to the ones now. From January to
whatever time March, | don't have any of those. Williams: Are there any other reports we should be
looking at every month? Okay, I'll update the sheet and give you an updated one. Thompson:
Okay. Williams: [ will send it out to everyone so that we are all on the same page. Anything else
before we go to the Mayor's budget? Gottschalk: What ['m going to talk about, what Tommy's
going to talk about or any other director. This is not an (inaudible) where you have to pass this
appropriation budget by the end of the week. We can discuss any amendments on this in April,
May, June, whatever. So, let's not get stuck on anything if there's some questions. Because you have
to have this thing into the County by the end of the week. The only thing that I am strongly
recommending is | directed Brian to include the 5%, retroactive rates for the 22 employees who are
full-time. That have had to have been here at least six months. If they're less than six months until
they've been here six months, they are not getting that. Additionally, if a director feels any of his
staff isn't meant to get the five, you can make that decision. Williams: All right, let me let me jump
in before you go further. Because [ don't want us to get too far down and away from where we're at
as a Council. And we have the authority to approve the budget. What we are going to do by March
29th, 2024, because that is the date you have to submit to the state. And I understand that he has
directed you. And I know you've been directed by Council to submit a 50% budget. So essentially
taking the temporary budget that you had previously approved and just doing that times two to get



us through June 30th, 2024, Thompson: Yeah, Climer I think he advised everyone that you
can't..Williams: It's not a temporary budget, it's our full measure budget. Thompson: I hear what
you're saying, full measure. But you only want to do like two quarters, right? Williams: We're only
authorized on 50% of the budget. Thompson: I'll go back and get clarity with Climer. That would
be his legal determination per the Ohio Revised Code. Williams: You can get that; we've already
looked it up. But you have until March 29th, and so are you hearing what we are saying we're at?
Gottschalk: Yeah, you're saying that instead of the full thing, it's 50%. Williams: Of where we're
at right now. Gottschalk: Yeah, [ have no problem with that. Williams: That doesn't include any
increases. Gottschalk: I know it includes the 5%. Williams: No, it includes... Gottschalk: I'm
sorry, it's an insult to the few employees we have here. Who are now getting 5%. Putting up zero in
2020, 2% in 2022, and 3% in 2023. Williams: What did they get in 2021 and 2022? Gottschalk:
2%. Williams: Okay, so you skipped over that. But I'm telling you where we're at. Gottschalk: We
have the money for this. So why do you want to insult the few employees that we have here?
Williams: What is an insult to the employees is that we're under a special audit investigation.
Gottschalk: Oh, please, we have the money for it, ma'am. We have the money for it. Williams:
We're not going to do business as usual, Gottschalk: No, we're not doing business right. When
you're trying to insult our employees. Williams: It's not an insult, if you want to frame it as that.
Then that's your choice of words. But we are not doing business as usual under a special forensic
investigation. Gottschalk: You should appreciate where we are in the city. We have more
businesses in high tech and medical research than anybody else. And yet you wanted to do this.
Williams: As a Council, we should not appreciate that we are under a special audit forensic
investigation. And that is a slap in the entire Village's face. That is not a regular thing that occurs.
That is something that happens for a very special reason. And to expect us to conduct business as
usual under that is not putting our Village best interest financially at heart; it's not. Howse: What
did you say? Williams: Our Village is Under a special forensic audit investigation. Gettschalk:
That has to do with Schade. It has nothing to do with this. Williams: We can have further
conversations about what it has to do with. Because I think that is a question that we all have. But
until we get to that investigation, we know exactly why we're being investigated and what the
findings are. It is unreasonable for you to expect us to increase our budget in any way. Gottschalk:
With the 5%, we're not increasing the budget. You can see that we're still lower than last year.
Williams: It's an increase. Gottschalk: It's not an increase, okay. Every one of the departments that
are submitting their budget is less than last year in most cases. Williams: Well, let's go back, since
we're down this road. What's an insult to the Village, is that...Gottschalk: No, it's an insult to the
Village for these are 20 employees. That have been getting paid less than what even the economy is
showing with respect to the increases. Williams: Here's what the issue is, Administration and the
Council should be working together. When we're working together, what happens is. You, as
Administration and the Finance Director, come to the Council in an executive session and say we're
thinking about 5% raises. And then we have a discussion before you say one word to employees or
directors. What you did was skipped over us, didn't acknowledge us, didn't acknowledge our
authority, and told everyone what they would receive without any of our input. So your problem
here is a problem you created. Gottschalk: You were asking for three and even two and even one,
and I say it's insulting. These people have had a great work ethic and they're working very, very
hard. And there's only about 22 of them outside of safety, meaning Police and Fire. And yet, as [
say, they're bringing in less money every year since 2020, Even with the 5%, it's not covering the
increases, respectively in grocery or gas or anything else. And yet you're saying, well, that's too bad,
you're still not going to increase it. Williams: [t's not too bad, it's just not, you talk about the budget
as if it's isolated. And what we're trying to do is convey the, the idea that this is a totality type of
thing. We can't just do an increase without looking at everything else. Gottschalk: You don't think
this has gone through our own budget counsel and i'm not talking Brian or me. We're talking in
terms of S&P rating, etc.. Williams: What does that have to do with this? Gottschalk: If in fact we
were asking for an increase, they would be all over us... Williams: That doesn't have anything to do
with this process. Gottschalk: That shows you why again, this is the wrong... Williams: No, let me



tell you what it shows you. Gottschalk: (inaudible) bond counselor (inaudible) anybody who looks
at your books to see what the revenue is versus what the expenditure is. Williams: Isn't that what
the auditors do? The special forensic audit investigators... Gottschalk: The auditors just show
exactly what you have spent. The auditor is not recommending anything. Williams: But the
auditors look at our books, right? Gottschalk: Yeah. Williams: Okay, the auditors that are looking
at our books that are doing a special forensic audit investigation. Those auditors are looking for a
reason, and they're... Gottschalk: That has to do with Schade, don't get it messed up here.
Williams: It has to do with Schade? You know this for a fact? Gottschalk: Yeah. Williams: Okay,
you haven't communicated that to us. Gottschalk: Well, there hasn't been a meeting because Climer
hasn't had a chance to sit down with you. Williams: That's not up to Climer you're Administration,
that's up to you. Gottschalk: No, it's for Council to have your executive session on the Schade
matter. Williams: How do we have an executive session on something we don't know about?
Gottschalk He's tried to have it the last 2 or 3 weeks, and there hasn't been... Williams: Not about a
special audit investigation. Did you receive the letter of arrangement? Thompson: [ have the
arrangement; it came to me. Williams: Did you communicate that to the Mayor? Thompson: Yeah,
and the stuff they are requesting says for Schade. Williams: How long have they been requesting
those things? Thompson: Quite a bit, but it's just coming together. And, if you go back a span of
years, we got to go back through Iron Mountain. So, it's been quite a time period, but they are
getting down to the end of the road on it. Williams: So, they requested documents and then when
you send those documents. They requested additional documents, correct? Thompson: Yeah, to the
expense for the year, once they understand kind of what they're looking at. Williams: So, as far as
we know, the Schade incident that he keeps referring to happened in 2021? Thompson: Yeah, he's
been out two years. Williams: So, why are they looking at 2017 to 2022? Thomspon: You know
what, that was already in the original subpoena. So, it's covering the same time frames. Williams:
Okay. Thompson: Yeah. and that would have happened 2021, Schade would have happen
somewhat a little before that. Williams: So, like four years before that? Thompson: I don't know if
it's four, but it would have been some. Williams: Well, 2017 is four years to 2021. Thompson: But
the original document for Schade is the same repeated documents as this new one. And everybody, |
think, seen it because they were cc’d, I just signed off when it came in. Williams: We all received
it, but there's been no conversation about it. [t's a special forensic audit investigation. Thompson: |
just got that within the last couple of weeks. Williams: Do you know (inaudible). Thompson: They
would come through and look at the documents they want to pull. Williams: They investigate
fraud, government fraud. Thompson: Yeah, this all was culminated with the Schade thing.
Williams: So, again, unttl we know the findings from that. It’s very unreasonable...Gottschalk: |
have no time for that, I am buried in development. The only thing that we can make sure that can
happens is. The Council president in the meeting tomorrow. When you're done, you can have an
executive session on this matter with Climer and yourselves. And he'll give you whatever you need.
Williams: We will do that, but do you understand that we are not increasing the budget until...
Gottschalk: Well, I'm not hearing that, nope. Williams: Okay, well that's where we're at, March
29th is due. So, you understand the precarious situation that you are putting the Village in. If you
choose to direct... Gottschalk: The residents will understand what the situation is. Let's get on with
the Mayor’s... Williams: Oh, no, no, no I don't want to [ don't want to do that because March 29th
is Friday. So, if you submit a budget to us that includes an increase that we're saying we're not
going to approve. We're going to be at a standstill, you only have until Friday. Thompson: Well, I
did include the... you have all the general fund. I will submit the special revenue tomorrow. But
there were some assumptions in there that [ do have in there. The 5%, potentially retro pay for the
five pay differentials. Williams: When you give us those amounts? Thompson: During the budget
time [ gave to you. It's been somewhat conversation about what needs to happen with those officers
and their pay differentials in their acting positions. So, I took that into account and put it in the
budget. Williams: We've talked about it. Thompson: Right. Williams: And you just added it to the
budget without telling us the amounts or that I think we're going to add? Thompson: Yeah, we
knew the amounts, I put it in. But ultimately you’re the body to approve it. So, you know, at some



point | think it needs to be addressed. If [ wouldn’t have put it in, we would have had to go back to
amend it. But even now it’s a draft, you can strike it. We can get a budget, make changes
throughout the year. So, I've just put those assumptions in. The 5% is in there and the potential retro
pay for those officers. And I still had it balanced with those numbers to $357,000 per year.
Williams: So, you have it prepared to be on the agenda for tomorrow? Or were you expecting us to
have a special meeting? Thompson: Not sure when it will happen. It has to happen by the end of
the month. So, I did forward a draft for the legislation to Climer. To ultimately, I guess give it to
Tanya, he just had to change some date. Williams: A draft for what budget? What we requested
you to do? Thompson: No, it's a draft for the legislation we do annually. Just saying we making an
appropriation for 2024. [ just told him to change it from 2023 to 2024. And we repealed the
temporary budget we did already this year. So, he has to put his legality mix in there. Williams: So,
you totally disregarded our request. For you to put together the budget at the same level we had just
approved. Thompson: I have not done that type of budget. Williams: Okay, so you totally
disregard... Thompson: Not disregard because a draft is before you. If you want to strike the
numbers then we can, I could go back. Williams: But you wasted time drafting a budget that we did
not request. Thompson: Well, I think the assumptions were fair. Williams: You don't get to
assume, we directed you to draft a budget. Thompson: I'm working for all three branches of
government. So, I'm giving you the draft. You can amend it or start building it. Williams: We're not
amending it; we’re telling you that that is not what we are looking to approve. Thompson: That's
going to be an amendment if don't approve it. Williams: You need to create a budget that's 50% of
the budget at the levels you just approve. So that times two, very easy temporary budget times two
of 50%. Thompson: That's something we can do. I don't have a problem putting the budget
together. I'll just changed the numbers. Williams: You seem to have a problem. Thompson: It has
to be put in legality terms of what needs to be done for the Village and me submitting the budget to
the County. Williams: We know it's legal, I'm not sure why it's not done. Because you didn't even
draft it and then draft an additional one. You just didn't draft it at all. Thompson: Still, you have
that authority to change it. That’s what I am trying to tell you. You're the ultimate body of the
budget, you control the budget. Williams: Brian, this has to be done by Friday. Thompson: Right,
and I could go back and change the numbers. So, [ will consult with Climer tomorrow and see if we
can do that type of budget and not a full one. Williams: You’re doing a 50% budget at the numbers
that we already approved. So that times two to get you through June 30th. Thompson: And you
only approve the 25% budget. Williams: 25% times two is 50% to get you through, June 30th.
Thompson: I'll see if we can do that if it's allowable. Williams: You’re the Finance Director you
should know if we can do that. Thompson: No, | know our bond Counsel chimed in, the Law
Director said you cannot do that. Williams: The Bond Counsel chimed in on, can we approve
another temporary budget. I don't know who phrased it that way, but we are not asking you to create
a temporary budget. We are asking you to take the numbers from the temporary budget. Multiply it
times two to get a 50% budget and use it as the full measure budget for the year, very simple.
Thompson: The budget is temporary because you don't have a full-on budget, it still temporary.
Williams: That is your full budget. Thomspon: Only temporary. Williams: All you get to spend is
50%. Thompson: Right, and it’s temporary. So, when you come back and tell me I need a full
budget. I'm going to amend that temporary 50% you gave me to operate the Village for the full
year. Williams: When we come back and tell you to amend it. You're going to amend what we give
you as the full measure budget, it’s not difficult. Thompsoen: Okay, [ gave you the rendition of
what’s been recommended. We’ll strike the numbers; I’ll check on the legality of doing a 50%
budget. Howse: Okay, so you're saying to take the temporary budget and multiply that times two to
make it your permanent? But it's the intent that you're going to amend the appropriation once you
get everything you need. Is that what you're saying? Williams: Correct. We have outstanding
documents. Howse: Yeah | mean, I'm saying you can pass a budget at any number as long as it's
permanent. But permanently you can amend the budget a gazillion times. Thompson: So, what |
gave them, they can approve. Howse: So, it's not an issue, you can amend the budget as many times
as you want. Williams: No, no, no, don't fast talk. We didn't say what you gave us we're going to



approve as permanent. We told you to take the temporary times two and you're approving that as
the permanent. We're not approving what you created at the 5% increase for the entire year. We're
not opening up the entire Villages purse for the entire year for you to spend at will. We are giving
you 50% because we are under a special audit. Gottschalk: It’s alright for you to spend $13,000 to
go to Washington. Yet you're not willing to give 5%. Williams: You can throw at us whatever you
wish right now. You are getting 50% of that budget. Whatever you wish to say, feel free, you're
getting 50%. Gottschalk: I want to know that for tomorrow in the meeting. That four Council
people are against 5%. Williams: You got six right here. Gottschalk: If we didn’t have the money,
I could absolutely agree with you, yeah. Scruggs: So, | have a suggestion, if we go ahead and we
approve this 5%, and then we cancel everything else that we're doing for the rest of the year. Then
we make sure we take care of our employees, and we cancel all of the activities. We cancel all the
extra special projects that we have going on, and we take care of our employees. Then we can work
through this budget. Let's start there, let's do that. These people that are working deserve this 5%.
No more activities, no more nothing until we can. So, those things get on pause and those things get
on hold, and we take care of our employees. Gottschalk: Well Brian will be able to show you
exactly the expenditures on the streets, etc.. So, you know what we're going to be working with.
Williams: That's not what she’s saying. Scruggs: That's not what I’m saying. What I'm saying is
we shut everything else down, we pay our employees, and we don't do anything. Until we have the
numbers. [ have been here for like 60 days. I still don't understand this budget, and I'm sitting here
and my heart is beating fast. And I'm just like, why can't we get a straight answer? It's so simple to
me. What are the numbers? Give us the numbers, we can make a decision. And I'm feeling like, I'm
real quiet. But I'm getting real upset that we can't get a straight answer so we can move forward. It's
always like this, [ feel like I'm spinning. Let's be straight, let's work together, let's make this thing
work out. But right now, we don't have what we need to even make the decision. But if we want to
make this an issue and we want to do this thing for our employees. And we want to say 5%, of
course we want to. We want to support our employees. We're not saying they don't deserve it,
inflation is crazy. So, lets shut everything else down and let's focus on our employees. Forget about
the grants, we'll figure out a way to get another grant. We might lose the project, okay, we'll get
another one. Let's pay our employees, let's forget about all these concerns. Let's forget about this
egg drop and all of that. Let's forget it and pay our employees. [f that's what we're talking about,
that's where I'm at. Gottschalk: Again, there is the money for that, and you'll see that. But [ have no
problem with cutting things back if, in fact, we don't have it. Williams: She's not saying cutting
things back. She's saying, you look at this 5% increase, which looks like $255,000. Gottschalk: No,
Brian...Thompson: That was a 5% for (inaudible). You can't just do 22 people and not your Fire
Department. Gottschalk: Yeah, but the Fire Department is getting $350,000 of (inaudible)
Thompson: Yeah, but they still want their base salary. Matlock: Can I please ask a question on the
Fire Department. They work full time somewhere else, right. Thompson: Yes. Matlock: Has
anybody looked at what percentage of raise they got from the other entities that they work at?
Thompson: I think one from Pepper Pike told me about 5%. Matlock: And the other ones got
what? Thompson: I didn't poll the rest of them, just a couple guys. Williams: Just enough to match
the 5% that you all want to give. Matlock: [’m just trying to see what the average amount that they
were getting. Gottschalk: We're not paying benefits, insurance, or anything else. Matlock: No, but
this part time, it is a part time job. [ just want to know what is the average that they are getting.
Because keep in mind they're working at cities or whatever that could pay much... we're a Village.
We don't have as much coming in as they probably do. I'm not saying not to pay them, but I'm
saying do we ever check out what is the actual average? And 1 know I'm looking at the actual
Charter and maybe I'm reading it wrong. But it says, like a minimum of six months, they wouldn't
get a 5%, right? But when I look at the Charter, it says full-time employees and regular part-time
employees with a minimum of two years of prior service with the Village. In providing for wages,
terms, and conditions of employment. Davis: What page are you on? Matlock: It will be under
section 7.16 compensation of officers and employees. It was just something that | was looking at.
And it will be basically your third paragraph down. Williams: So, the Police have already received



these increases though, correct? Thompson: Yes. Matlock: Because they're a part of a union.
Williams: So, it's the $255,000, that's the $77,000, that's the $15,000 because that's already
happening? Thompson: Yeah... Williams: Or were you trying to give them a 5% on top of that.
Thompson: No, when you budget, [ had the budget for Police and everyone else. So, it's in there,
that document I gave you tonight. You can look down by department and see everybody. It has the
5% in here and a couple more assumptions that I talked about. I still had the General Funds balance
with $357,000. Matlock: When was the last time you guys with the good pay ordinance?
Thompson: We need to update the pay ordinance. Matlock: They’re at a range, right? Thompson:
Yeah. Matlock: But we're still giving them a percentage over. Are they going over that range if
they're supposed to be at? Thompson: They are way over that old range. That pay ordinance needs
to be updated. Williams: How could they be way over? Thomspon: Because what we have done is
given them raises per what we approve with FOP. That's what has been happening. Williams: But
you can't go over the max amount of the range without legislation. Matlock: Unless we approve an
actual new pay range for them. If they haven't done one, then you stay in that pay range.
Thompson: Pay ranges need to be updated. Williams: So, you paid money on salaries and wages
that was not authorized. Thompson: No, we gave it from what was approved to our safety force.
That's just been the action that we’re taking. Williams: But that's something you should have
brought back to us. To say that the salary ordinance with the ranges needed to be updated/amended.
Before you give these, we are out of compliance. You're out of compliance, you're spending
unauthorized dollars actually. Gottschalk: When you gave 2% in 2022 and 3% in 2023, he was in
non-compliance? Williams: Listen, it’s very, very simple. When you have a salary ordinance...
Gottschalk: This is exactly why this is where it is with all this I'm hearing. (Inaudible), population
lost the entire country because of the mismanagement by most of the... Williams: You can't talk
about city management if we're under special investigation. You can't play both sides. Thompson:
But what happens with the salaries, we gave the raises. And Council approved the appropriations at
that level with the raises. So, | did have the authority. Williams: But the salary ordinance...
Thompson: The salary ordinance may be old. But the appropriations were approved by the body of
Council who controls the budget. Williams: But you still can't go over the salary ordinance. You
have to update it first, Brian, you know that. Thompson: You have to update it, but if you approve
the budget. And the raises are in there, then I had the authority. Matlock: This is the problem |
have... Thompson: And this is the new budget. Matlock: The problem I have is we all should be
working together. Thompson: Yeah. Matlock: Administrative and Council, the salaries went out
without even talking to us. The employees already were told they're going to get a 5%. But you
didn't talk to nobody here. We should be walking hand in hand. | mean, seriously, because that right
there you're talking about budget. You're talking about salaries and budgets of the Village. I'm just
saying, when you start talking to employees really honestly. They shouldn’t even be talking to each
other about salaries. Because really, you should be doing an evaluation of each employee. And if
they are deserving of 5%, okay, they're deserving of 5%. But you should be doing evaluations on
them. Gottschalk: Paggie that's the director’s job to be doing that. And I told you some directors
are giving out less than 5%. Matlock: Yeah, but the only thing I have a problem with is. I'm
looking at some of the things that's coming out and you say directors. Fine, but I'm even looking at
things that are in the handbook. Remember, [ have been just targeting in on just sick leave and
vacation time. When you actually start looking at even that, they're not following that. Gottschalk:
Some of the stuff dates back te 2003. Matlock: Hold on, but if that's the case, then we need to
update or do whatever. But right now, we're in a situation where you got a handbook. And each
director should know what's in their handbook. And when those employees come here with all the
sick leave. And now we can't really touch your sick, but vacation time, we should be able. When
this says you carry over 40 hours with, approval of an administrative person, that's what it should
be. And at 40 hours, that means they come and tell you when they're going to take it on that next
year. You have people in there that's holding vacation time like it's a bank account. Vacation time is
not a bank account, it's not a bank account, period. And if they were to leave tomorrow, you will
owe them so much money, it will bankrupt us. And that should be each director's job to say at



whatever time period. Ifit's in September, July, or whatever. Matter of fact, it'd probably be better
at the beginning of the year in February/March. When are you going to take your vacation? [ need
you to sign off. How many weeks? But it's up to them to tell them in November. Okay, look, you
had this many hours over this time period for the approval or whatever. Because really, in reality,
down the way you lose it. If you don't use that time, it’s gone. Thompson: I think you're on the
right track Ms. Matlock. Matlock: But, I'm just saying this is just a problem that [ have. Because
we shouldn't be fighting over budget and 5% or whatever. Because that salary ordinance tells them.
This is what your job is, this is how much you can get paid for this job, this is it. Until Council
approves it and pushes it out a little further. Other than that, we're giving them 5%. We don't even
know where they're at now. Last year, they got, what? Gottschalk: They got a 3%,. Matlock: A
3% raise, a 5% raise, next year [ know they negotiated what a 5%? Thompson: Yeah. Matlock:
Then you going to give all the employees another five? That's 15% within three years, 15% of their
salary think about it. Gottschalk: You can't say that we don't have any idea until we know we have
the money. And the thing that's being forgotten is, again, be blessed that our Fire Department brings
in $1 million a year to the general fund. No other Fire Department does that. Bedford, Bedford
Heights, they only have four people working in this department. Williams: but you spend it.
Gottschalk: What? Williams: You spend it, you spend all of it. Gottschalk: That goes in the
general fund, but it didn't have to happen. We have Glenwillow and Walton Hills. We won't be
getting that extra million dollars going into the general fund. Williams: How are we using it to
improve the Village? We're just spending it. Gottschalk: Of course. Williams: On uniforms and
we don't even know what else. [t's just gone, it's not an additional $1 million that we can see real
impact and benefit from. Gottschalk: Their uniforms are part of the Fire Department expenditure.
Williams: No, I see them with the ambulance billing fund. Gottschalk: Yeah. Williams: They
should be, you're so right. They should be in the Fire Department's budget, but they're not. They're
in the ambulance billing fund, that's a problem. Gottschalk: But that's part of the EMS project. And
that $350,000 goes into that. So that $350,000 of their emergency runs goes into the Fire
Department. The $1 million goes into the genera! fund. Williams: That money goes to the
ambulance billing fund, and we spend it. Nikolie: So, we had been talking about the ordinances and
working with Tanya. What is the status of the combination of all the salary ordinance? Because it
was a request for our budget meeting. Thompson: I think we've put together all the ones we had,
and we definitely need to move forward to devise a new one. Currently, we do need to fix that.
Williams: Before we do that, what we asked you to do, and we asked every director. And I don't
know if you shared it yet. We asked for job descriptions for every single position in the Village. To
include their business hours for that position, to include their salary range for that position. That's
what we asked for, and we still haven't received it. Thompson: Okay, that goes out to all directors.
Williams: Correct, we haven’t gotten it. Thompson: Okay. Williams: So, when we talk about why
we are not approving more than 50% of the budget. The things that we continue to ask for, that we
need to make solid decisions like salaries. And who gets the increase based off of what base pay.
We don't even know where these people are at. You already said that you're outside of the range for
the last salary ordinance. So, we don't even have anything to go off of to give this 5%. You just
expect us to give up like 5%. We haven't even seen everybody salaries. Thompson: You should
have it, I did give you the docurnent, I sort it by departments. Williams: You gave us what lookst
to be an Excel spreadsheet with numbers. I know can't be correct because the Mayor's pay is lower
than Captain Freeman's pay. And there's no way by ordinance, he could be pay less than the Police
Chief. He has to be 5% over, so automatically [ know the numbers are incorrect. Thompson: Well,
he is. Williams: But if you look on the sheet, he's not. On the sheet he's at $103,000 and Garrat is at
$120,000. So that lets me know automatically... Gottschalk: Brian (inaudible). Williams: Thank
you, so it is incorrect. Thompson: | have to look at the document Candace. Because he’s always
5% higher. But Garratt gets uniform allowance, he gets longevity, so some of those things could
come into play. But his base salary is always higher than Garratt. Williams: It’s not on that sheet.
Thompson: Okay, well maybe Garratt's numbers might be that because they get a proficiency
allowance, they get longevity. So, some of those things are adding in. But his base pay is always...



he has his 5%. So, if you take out those components you look at the base pay. I guarantee you he's
always 5% higher. Williams: So, if I ask you for the salary, then don't include uniform allowance
and blah blah blah. Thompson: [ showed you the rate of pay, the rate of pay is the salary. That’s
what was asked for... Williams: Let’s do this, if you give me the payroll register from the payroll
report. I could see what everybody was making without you creating an excel spreadsheet.
Thompson: It’s public record Candace we can give it to you. Williams: I've asked you for it for
the last few months. Thompson: | have to go back and {inaudible) if you ask for the pay roll
register. Williams: We’ve asked for the payroll register. Thompson: Not the register, I know you
asked for the lead balance. [ know you ask for the salaries. [ know you asked for the pay rate. But
you didn’t... Williams: You don’t have to go create an extra excel spreadsheet. With all you have,
what payroll system do we use? [ know payroll [ do payroll. Thompson: We got VIP. Williams:
Okay you can go into the system and print me a report. What we asked for was 2023-year end dates.
2023 is done, all you got to do is push a button. Because they got their W-2s, this isn't difficult. So
why you create an Excel spreadsheet, I don't know. Because all you have to do is go in the system,
hit that button and give me that report. And I can see everybody's paid for the entire year.
Thompson: You didn't ask for specific payroll registers. You asked for rates and names. Williams:
Why would you... Thompson: If you would have said register, then I would have gave a full
register. You would have seen the gross, the Medicare, PERS, all their deductibles. Williams: Can
you get us that tomorrow? Thempson: Sure, but [ don't think that you said pay registers. I’'m not
looking to withhold information, it’s public record you can have it. Whatever you want I can
provide it for you. Nikelic: But Brian, [ remember in one meeting you did mention that's something
1 can get to you tomorrow. And [ think the clarification was the fact that you were going to give it to
us in that form. As opposed to the form that I was asking. Thompson: It was just a
misunderstanding. Nikolic: [ was asking for per employee, but then we were in the meeting. You
mentioned that you could provide something similar to what she's asking you, the next day. And I'm
assuming that's what you were referring to. Thompson: I'll have that register so that you can see
everything per employee. Williams: We cannot make decisions about increases without that
information. And then also there steps to this. Then when we get it, we need to adjust the pay
ordinances. You all are expecting these increases. We are trying to get things in order because it's
out of order. We're not following the last pay ordinances. We don't know who's making what when,
by position. So, all of these things need to happen, and I'm not sure what the lag is. Those job
descriptions, current pay, hours worked, job description, and the salary range for the position.
Thompson: The job descriptions are on record. But we can commentate it back to a summary.
Because every time we have budget hearings for the last two years, you had your job descriptions.
Williams: Right, but they're not for every position. Like for instance, you have the Payne’s
working. What are their separate positions? Thompson: You get finance management and accounts
payable. Williams: [s there a finance manager position? Because [ didn't find an ordinance where
we created that role. What ordinance number is that, that we have a finance manager? Because
you're the Finance Director. Thompson: Because you have accounts payable, checks and balances.
And that person is pretty much working together to close out the books, It takes a lot going into it.
Williams: It is difficult to create checks and balances. When two people are related, mother and
daughter. Thompson: Yeah. Williams: That’s not a good checks and balance. Thompson: That's
one of the best decisions ['ve made, having that staff in place. And those two ladies work hard, they
got to skills. We are getting the reports out on time. So, [ would make the same decision again. You
contest that their mother and daughter, it's not like it's a nepotism. They are not working for the
mom; they are working for me. Williams: They are checking each other’s work, right? You just
said their check and balances... Thompson: They are doing the credit, checks, and closing out the
month. [ am doing the final reviews. Matlock: Whose job is it to do the updates? Whose job would
that be? Thompson: I think, you definitely have to have the Finance Director involved. So, the
finance, we’ll put it together and grab the payroll information. We'll start where we are at with the
salaries. And whatever is projected, technically for these raises. You kind of got to move those
ranges together per year. So. we can do another three-year range together. 2024, 2025, 2026, lists all



the different positions and then we'll put the ranges per year. Then we'll have it all updated.
Williams: You don't need to do a range per year. You need to do a range for the position. Because |
think one pattern that we're seeing. Is that there's an expectation for increases without any
evaluations. So, increases need to be tied to something measurable from here on out. Not just we so
choose to give 3,45, 6, whenever, to whoever. With no understanding of who's performing, who's
not, who’s showing up for the full amount hours and work who's not. We need to know all those
things. Thomspon: You only put together one range. I mean if things get negotiated. You know, set
arange, you still have to go back and amend that. Williams: So, then we go back. But you don't
Jjust have full leeway to keep changing things without... that's the problem here. We control the
budget. There's no way for us to control it. If you're just able to do whatever you want, whenever
you want. Hardin: Brian you remember... just go back a little history. This is something that was
set. [t was called grading on a curve, remember that conversation? That's where we are, we need the
evaluations. And give the supervisors the latitude to give the raises based on performance. Howse:
Okay, so T looked at the legislation. And at one point it was just like, we just approve the rate. You
didn't have a range, then you went to a range. And then there's no other order. So, is this right Brian,
that the last pay range was 2008? Thompson: Yeah, I think that's around the time. Howse: So, in
2009, using you as example, your salary range was $56,000 to $70,019. Where are you at today?
Thompson: I'm in the 90s. Howse: What about the Building Inspector? Thompson: They are all
going to be higher than that. Because we approved in the budget year to year to follow the FOP
contract. Williams: We are not in the FOP. Thompson: I'm not, I'm saying the budget move that
way. Because it was given by the administration what the (inaudible) Howse: Brian I don't think
this is nefarious. [ think that's legitimate like, to your point it needs to be updated. And Mayor to
your point, seriously how can you determine to give a person raise if (inaudible). You're asking
Council to give a 5% raise. | haven't heard anyone say they didn't want to give it. All they've been
asking for is Brian you're right, it needs to be updated. And then come back and say here's what [
propose, the 5%. It should be updated every year. If you giving 3%, it should be updated.
Gottschalk: You do know that our pay is less than nearly every other community. Howse: It does
not matter, you got to follow guidelines. Gottschalk: That's why the other cities are where they're
at. Howse: You get a lot more with honey. This is ridiculous, it’s simple stuff they're asking for. It's
not unreasonable, you're making it out. You're trying to paint this picture that Council is against the
Village, against these employees. You know that's not true. What they're asking for is reasonable.
Instead of arguing and wasting all this time, Brian knows what to do. Gottschalk: (inaudible) give
them what the other cities are making in terms of.... Matlock: No, but that’s not what we are
asking. Howse: We are not other cities. Gottschalk: With what Ms. Scruggs had to say that, in fact,
it's the 5%. We will cut back, in three months we'll see where we're at. We'll make the budget cuts
that have to be necessary to offset this. Williams: We're not... no, what she's saying is. You either
get increases now and there is no other spending. We're not cutting back in three months. We're
cutting back right now. You get 5% increase and there is no concerts, no activities, no nothing.
Gottschalk: We'll know every month when we're meeting. Williams: That's not the compromise.
Gottschalk: No. Williams: The compromise is... Gottschalk: You don't understand either, Council
doesn't look at every single line item to yes or no. Williams: And you do? Gottschalk: Just the
broad picture, it's not one single little thing. Williams: No, it's every line. Gottschalk: You're
getting way too involved in this. And that's exactly why the other cities are where they're at.
Williams: That's probably why we're under special investigation. Because we have... Gottschalk:
{Inaudible). Williams: We're going to look by line item now. We're going to do exactly that.
Gottschalk: Line items that were 20 years old that weren't dealing with Covid or anything else.
Williams: Covid was 3 or 4 years ago, not 20 years. Gottschalk: And that's when the changes that
were made. Particularly in terms of getting no percent for 2021, no percent and only 2% at 2022,
and 3% in 2023. Williams: Well, what Mrs. Scruggs offered was the increase and we cut all other
expenditures that are not necessary. Would you like that for a compromise? Gottschalk: You have
three other people in the Service Department looking for another job immediately when the one
left... Williams: We have to take care of the Village. You keep giving us... Gettschalk: Soon



we’ll have no Service department people working here. Williams: Then we will have to hire new
ones. Gottschalk: Oh, it's so easy to hire more. Even Solon right now, can’t even get bus drivers.
Cleveland schools are $168 million in debt, and they're having to cut back nearly every single
program. Williams: What does that have to do with us? Gottschalk: It has nothing to do with us,
no. Howse: Do you have a list of who all you're giving 5% to? Or are you saying everybody
deserves 5%7? Gottschalk: No, what's going to happen, and nobody has gotten 5%... Howse: No,
I’m saying, you said everybody should get 5%. Gottschalk: The director looks and sees his staff.
There’s not many in any staff. So, if they don't get 5% you can make the direction for 3% or 2% or
0. Howse: When did we give the directors the power to decide who they give raises to?
Gottschalk: We're not going to be hiring human resource people. Howse: No, no, no, I’'m saying
it's always been you will decide. But Council decides who gets raised here. Gottschalk: Let me
finish...if a person hasn’t been here six months, they don’t get any raises. Howse: It's legislated in
here how people get raises. Gottschalk: 20 years ago. Howse: If I was Council, that would be the
talk on the top of my agenda just like Mrs. Scruggs said. But every individual need to be looked at.
It's not to assume everybody’s full time should be getting 5%. And 1 do have a question for you,
Mayor. Does everybody including salary, in this building. Does everybody punch a clock?
Gottschalk: No. Howse: No, just the hourly people. Williams: Some hourly people. Howse:

I know some cities including where [ work, even salary punches a clock. I think accountability is
the biggest thing and I think that's the issue here. That's the issue, every time [ come to Council,
when [ do come. It’s the same request, it's not unreasonable. It was asked the pay register, it’s still a
ledger. She asked for the pay register a while ago. Thompson: [ think at some point I gave her one,
I'will go back and see. I gave her a register, I gave them all the rates, position... Howse: So, your
pay register will tie to whatever the employee is making, the base pay right? Because you don't give
increase on top of longevity do you? Thompson: No, the longevity is based on the tier in the
handbook. The register shows everything, I run the year in register, and you can see it. Howse: So,
if you ran a list, because they asked specifically for individuals their name. Thompson: Yeah.
Howse: What is Joe Schmo making? Thompson: Yes, | gave it to them. Howse: So they should be
able to tie that base rate to that pay register. Thompson: Yeah. Howse: What their making, and
how that was determined, right? Thompson: Right. Howse: So, the legislation which is... and they
are right Brian. Even though they passed 3%, if you have a salary range. That salary right should
have been amended to accommodate that 3%, but it never happened. So, it is true you are really out
of compliance. To bring it up to speed they need to know where they're at right now before they can
determine who gets what. You can't continue to say, just give me 3% and not know what the person
makes. You are out of compliance because you're passing legislation to give a 3% based on an old
range that you're not using. So technically, based on this range you should only be making $70,000.
You should have changes that $70,000 and increased it every year to what they gave you and
presented to Council. They pass the salary based on the ordinances. That's how it's been, and in
prior year. It used to be just like Joe Schmo, you're only getting $50,000. There was no range that
way you knew what Joe Schmo was getting. [t wasn't a range because that's when you lost the
control. I mean, the ranges worked then but you were giving the reports too. Williams: Well maybe
that's what we need to consider, Whether we will do ranges or just one figure. Maybe if we decide
to give increases, maybe we calculate what that increase is. Tie that to the position it holds there and
then we have to update the salaries. There's no... I mean, we've lost control of knowing who gets
what when essentially. And we approve the budgets and that is our job to know that. Nikolic:

So, Brian, when you say you think you found all of the salary ordinances. How do you know who
gets one and who doesn't? Is there, like, a set group of employees that has to obtain salary
ordinances? Because you're saying you're not sure if you can find them all. You're not sure if you
have them all. Thompson: The Clerk pulled up all the ones that are in a legislative form. And the
one Karen has in legislative form [ think that was the last one we did, salary ordinance for ranges.
Sometime there's some caveat ones, carrying out. Like I think we have one for the Police Chief, and
it definitely identifies so the Mayor won't lose ground. And the Chief is always higher, so he gets
5%. So. all of those are in place but bottom line, it needs to be a current. Gottschalk: By the way



Brian, have I ever asked about my salary? I don't even know what... Williams: So, everyone is
supposed to have a pay ordinance, everyone. Nikolie: Everyone getting a check. Williams:
Everyone getting money from this Village is supposed to have a pay ordinance. Nikolic: Okay.
Williams: So again, that gives us some control of knowing who is being hired. So, when we have
two new people in finance, but we haven't approved a pay ordinance. We don't know who's coming
in because we don't have pay ordinances. So essentially the whole process has just fallen to the
wayside. You could have 5 billion people on payroll, we wouldn't even know. They could never
even show up, we wouldn't even know. Nikolic: How did you hire them without a pay ordinance?
Did their money just come out of your budget? Thompson: Yeah, I've always put the money in my
budget if you’re just honing in on finance. But, I mean, the position has been in finance for a long
time. Nikolie: But the money just sat there even though the position wasn’t filled. The money sat in
the line item? Thompson: Actually, for me ! saved money, the line item was there. I mean, you got
last year’s, you bring people in and give them a certain salary. So actually, the people I brought in
were lower than what [ had before. Nikolic: But I'm asking if it just sat there. That amount of
money just sat in the budget while there was no one in the position? Thompson: Yeah, and at the
end of the year, my budget would have shown I didn’t use all the appropriations. Because T didn’t
pay a person because they left, I didn’t have anyone in the position. Williams: But to pay a person
you need a pay ordinance. So regardless of whether the money sits there for five years, a year, six
months, you need a pay ordinance to pay a person. Howse: So, the last few clerks that you hired in
the Finance Department. What hourly rate are they? Thompson: We don't need to discuss this in
some type of form or what? Williams: It’s public record. Howse: What are they making right now?
Thompson: forty to forty-five, because | was paying Ralph a lot. Matlock: Forty to forty-five
what? Thompson: A year. Nikelie: Oh, I thought you meant per hour. Thompson: And those are
less than what I had for previous employees. Howse: ok so $45,000, ok so 2008 is the last salary.
How did you come up with that? Thompson: If you figure from 2008 you have people in a
position... Howse: But Brian that's the problem. Thompson: You asked me a question ['m trying to
answer. [f we pass legislations approving the budget and we give them the 3% over years.
Ultimately, you know, the grosses go higher. I see the concept, we need a pay ordinance. Howse:
Not a concept. Williams: It’s not a concept, it is the law of Oakwood Village. Thompson: Okay,
law, we want to use the language of the law. We're still trying to reach back to what Ms. Matlock is
saying, work together. We need an updated pay ordinance. I'll get you the information in the correct
form. If it's not, I need to communicate with somebody. s this what you like? Do you want me to
redo it? We'll get that nailed down for sure. So, no more conversation in Council that Brian didn’t
give you your report. Because [ want to make sure you get what you need. Williams: And you got
to follow the letter of the law. You can't just make an assumption... Thompson: | know [ got to
follow the letter of the law. But [ wasn't out of bounds, giving these people... Williams: You were
out of bounds. Thompson: I'm not a lawyer, we’ll have to check with Climer. It was approved in
the budget I paid them. Yeah, we didn't have the ordinance at that time in terms of being up to date.
Matlock: But did you just see what you said? You pay them, but you can't do that. You can't just
give them a salary. Williams: And you can't play both sides. You can’t say I'm a Law Director but
then... Thompson: I'm just saying [I’'m trying to have a conversation. But the person who has to
determine that. You know whether or not the legislation being approved versus not having an up-to-
date ordinance. Because ['ve even talked to some other directors... Matlock: You should have
brought it to us. Thompson: One thing they have done is approve raises per what their contracts
have done with the safety forces. Howse: There is nothing wrong with that Brian. But the problem
is that you're paying them... All they're saying, it's not an insult, it's an O.R.C. It is an absolute
O.R.C,, the Council approves the budget, salaries, etc. And if you're saying that you used the last
update. According to this sheet, those new hires should be making under $45,000 based on this last
one. You don't have that power; no director has the power to decide what a person makes. Council
has that power, and you don't... Thompson: Council approved the levels, they approved the
budget. So, I was able to pay it. Matlock: But that they don't give you...(inaudible) Thompson: |
understand the concept of the payroll. Williams: It’s not a concept. Thompson: [ understand the



laws, Council approves...Howse: You should have come to Council and said, 1 want to hire these
two people. I need an approval for that. Thempson: That was internal with administration to
approve, all of that is an administrative function. You guys can’t go to the Chief's department over
there and say come to me when you want an approval. Nobody does that, that's atl up to the
director. Howse: The director determines what they get? You saying department heads approves. ..
Thompson: You guys were talking about hiring, not what they make. Howse: [ said if you hire a
person Brian. You're supposed to come to Council, anything dealing with money. This pay
ordinance is so out of date, it should have triggered you to say. I'm hiring two new people and |
want to pay them at this rate. [ need their budget for their salaries approved. Thompson: (inaudible)
we needed it. I got the level of approval on the budget to pay those salaries; so, it’s in there. The
Law Director can determine it. Howse: You don’t need the Law Director. Thompson: You do
because you're talking about law. Howse: We're talking about the O.R.C., it’s me and you talking.
Thompson: Yeah, and that’s law, O.R.C. is law Karen. Howse: It is the law but Brian you are the
Finance Director. (inaudible) Thompson: Yeah, and I follow suit because the budget was passed
with the levels of raises that was approved by the body. Howse: So, what you're telling me is, if you
budget a $100,000 for yourself. And you say it's in the budget, you can give yourselfa $100,000?
Thompson: No, I wouldn't do that, first of all. Howse: (inaudible) you put it in the budget.
Thompson: [ don't need to argue, I'm ready to do whatever we need to move forward. Tell me what
you need, and I will get it. Williams: There's some serious lack of clarity on your part as the
Finance Director. That is concerning for us as the individuals that control our finances. Thompson:
Well, you need to check the law. Williams: No, I'm going to finish... Thompson: All of this stuff
has been on top of everything else. You always come in attack mode And here you go again, you're
somewhat (inaudible) that you calling it, tried to insult me. I've been doing this job for (inaudible).
A lot of the stuff that happened in that handbook, Karen was here. Williams: Brian, please stop
talking. Thompson: No, [ can't stop talking, a lot of stuff just being referred in this book Karen was
here. Williams: Brian stop talking, stop talking. Thompson: You don't need to show me that.
(inaudible) Williams: Any time we have a conversation with... Thompson: You bring in, this is
your savior knowing about finances. A lot of these laws were here when Karen was here, and they
move forward. Howse: That's true. Williams: And she followed them. Thompson: It's true.
Williams: And what we're asking you (inaudible)... Thompson: | have to consideration a lot of
these lawsuits. Williams: Karen is not a contest thing... Thompson: If you're going to insult me,
insult Karen. This is the way I feed my family, and I take it seriously. Williams: You should take it
seriously. Thompson: I know, but I'm not going to get out of my character. [ presented you a
budget, you're in ultimate control. If you want to strike down the numbers, [ heard you. You want
to get two double 25% if that's allowable by law we'll do it. I'm not going to contest to any
reporting or any information on the taxpayers’ dollars, you can have it. Williams: What we are
saying to you is. Administrative function is you interview, you select who you want to hire.
Legislative function is, you bring to us who you plan to hire and what rate you think you would like
to hire them at. And we tefl you whether you can, Thompson: That comes in the budget process.
You haven’t even got to my department. Williams: No, sir. Thompson: Whenever we come upon
you, you bring all these directors before you. Williams: No, sir. Thompson: We show you
organizational chart, we have the job descriptions, you see it in the budget. We talk about
numbers... Williams: You're not understanding... Thompson: But I'm saying...Williams: You’re
cutting me off... Thompson: The positions are already there... Williams: Before you get to the
budget part, okay. You have to come to us when you were hire and say, here's Betty Sue and |
would like to pay her $40,000. And we say, does that $40,000 fall within this pay ordinance range?
Yes it does, we approved 40,000. No, we don't want to approve $40,000, we'll give you $38,000,
that is our authority. Your authority as directors is to interview and select the person you want.
That's how this works, it is not an interpretation of the law, it's not a misunderstanding, it's not
savviness. It's not any of those colorful things you added, it is very simple. You interview and
select, and we tell you what you can pay that person, that is the function. Thompson: But if
Council wants to go somewhere for fifteen grand. And it is not in the budget because we got a



quarter, that's a problem too. Williams: That's our job. Thompson: Okay, and you got
administrative, judicial, and legislative. So, you got three branches of body, I'm not here to argue.
Scruggs: I feel there's no argument to be had. Mr. Thompson... Thompson: Yes Mrs. Scruggs.
Scruggs: When I come here and [ see the titles Finance Director, Law Director, Mayor. Your titles
mean something to me. That title means that you are an expert in your area that I do not have
expertise in. So, when you say something, I am looking to you because I feel like you have
knowledge that [ don't have. And I am expecting from your position that you will be looking out for
the best interests in that area to help me. And bring me to the place of understanding. And what I'm
starting to feel is that, and what [ heard you say. And this is what you said. Council approved the
budget and since y’all didn’t see it. Then oh well, I put it in the budget, you know y’all approved it.
Thompson: [ didn’t mean it that way. Seruggs: But I'm new, but this is what 'm feeling like. Well,
I didn't know it, y'all didn't see it. [ put it in the budget, oh, well. You shouldn't approved it if it
wasn't... So, I'm feeling a little uneasy and I don't have the time, and [ don't have the expertise to go
and understand finance. | want to be able to say my Finance Director knows and understands this.
Let me reach out to my Finance Director. Because I know what I'm going to receive from my
Finance Director is straightforward. It’s not gray, it’s black or white, and they're finance numbers.
The numbers is the number and I'm having a hard time understanding gray when it comes to
numbers. And I feel that way when I'm listening to Mr. Climer. I feel like he’s spinning me too.
And maybe it's just me, but I just feel like there's so much gray. And T feel if we could, if we could
Just get the black and white. It'd be so much easier if we can understand and make these decisions.
And I'm trying to be just as diplomatic as possible. But that's what I'm hearing and that's what I'm
feeling. And that's what I've been receiving. And so looking forward in trying to move forward. The
gray just doesn't work in finance. The gray for me, I can't make a decision, I'm at a standstill, I'm
confused, and | don't understand it. Give me black or white, give me the numbers and then it can
make sense. So, I just want to just put that out there and just say that. Thompson: I appreciate your
input; I just don't arbitrarily put these numbers in place. We go through a rigorous process in letting
Council know, hey this budget has a 3% increases and this is what we're going to pay. So, it's not
arbitrarily, I just come and set those numbers. I came in here and discussed it department by
department. You knew that there was a 3% increase in these budgets, a 2%. It wasn't that I penciled
them in. We have vigorous conversation about what's going in those budgets. I had conversation
with everyone. | bring in professionals about the insurance and different things. So, it's not like I
arbitrarily penciled this in. Council did have rigorous discussion of know what was going in the
budget. And it's going to happen the same process... Williams: No, no, no, here's what you're not
understanding. Rigorous conversation or not, that decision lies with seven people only here, okay.
So, rigorous conversation or not, if you don't get 4 or 7 people to say we will give an increase, then
it doesn’t happen. We never had a final to say yes, put that in the budget. So, I don't know what
you're talking about rigorous conversation. We could have talked about at 12 meetings. We never
said add it to the budget. Thompson: You’ve been here a couple vears yourself Ms. Williams,
we’ve had budget hearing. I brought before you to put in a 3% raise. Williams: But that don't mean
you get to...3%? Y'all were asking for 5%. Thompson: I'm talking about previous years. You
could have struck it down then. We came in, we had conversations... Williams: We not talking
about three this year. Thompson: But I'm just saying we are trying to go to the fact. Not about the
rigorous conversation, but like Mrs. Scruggs was saying that I just arbitrarily put in numbers. 1
didn't do that, T brought it before Council. Williams: Nobody said you arbitrarily, what we said is
that you are making decisions, that it is our authority to make. And you are overstepping your
authority. Your authority is to bring to us what you all think you would like to do. Our authority is
to tell you whether you can or not when it relates to dollars. If it is one penny, it is our authority and
that is the standstill we're at here. In previous years, there were two different people sitting here and
it looked very different. Let's talk about that elephant. Two people that are now sitting here, we
didn't have the leverage that we have now. We now have different boats here. You cannot just give
us numbers and expect us to say yes. Thompson: That's fine, you may have different leverage now.
But you were still a conscious person two years ago and you made a decision. Williams: Oh yeah,



and 1 voted no for the last three years. So, you saying that to the wrong person. So, what I'm telling
you now is you can't expect for you all to make decisions about the budget. And just expect yes,
yes, yes, yes, yes, yes anymore. We make decisions about this budget on your recommendation of
what you think you'd like to do. But you don't get to tell us what we're going to do. Thompsen:
Okay, I gave you the exhibit of my recommendation from administration office. You can tell us
what you want to do. I did, you know, give it to you. Williams: Okay, and 1 told you 50% is what
you need to set that budget for 2024 to approve by March 29th. If you don’t have it at that, she's
offered a different solution. We do the increases, and we take out of the budget everything that's not
necessary. Until we make some final decisions about one, that's special forensic audit investigation.
That's another option... Thompson: That's fine, I'll put the numbers together. Davis: Also, you
know that with the Village code. We cannot give anybody a raise, period, for two years prior to
their service. it's right here in the code. So, anybody who got a two year raise all these years or even
this year. Cannot get a raise unless they've been here at least two years. Thompson: I'll leave it up
to Jim to interpret. Williams: So, you got to start to better understand what’s in our Charter. That's
not for interpretation, it says if you haven't been here two years, no increase. So now that means we
need a list of all the individuals that have been here two years or less. That's another level that you
have to provide us with. Thompson: Some of those things in the Charter probably just need to be
updated. Williams: We can’t update the Charter. Thompson: Yeah, you got to vote on it. If you see
it’s old then it needs to be updated. Matlock: Those are things that you have to work on. But right
now, that's the Bible, that's the law of the land. So, it's really nothing you can do about it but abide
by it until they do updated or do whatever. Williams: You’ve been here 16 years, and if it's been in
there all those 16 years. Then you should have suggested an update. Hey, this relates to my
department, maybe we should look at this. But for right now, that's what this is. Two years or less,
no increase. Thompson: All right, sounds good. Williams: Health insurance costs, I know that you
all gave some projections, and you all signed a contract. Have you all made any of those payments?
Thompson: Yeah. Williams: How did you do that without legislation? Thompson: Well, even
with the quarter budget. I got enough to make the payments for the agreement. And it was binding
language in the FOP to provide that. You know, we do have a contractual obligation to provide that
health care. Williams: So why didn't you all have the Law Director draft the necessary legislation
for you to be able to make those payments? Thompson: ['m not sure you have to ask him.
Williams: Okay, well, finance has to work in concert with whoever they need. To get whatever
they need. So right now, you would seem to be making unauthorized payments. Regardless of
whether they're in that contract. When you spend money from the budget. Council has to give you
the authority to do it. You all signed a contract. You indebted us to something, but you didn't come
with the appropriate legislation. And we're now at the end of March. Thompson: Okay. Williams:
So, you need to get the Law Director on that ASAP. Which is why we are only approving 50% of
the budget. Because it seems that the mindset is, if the money is there we'll just spend it however we
want. So, we want to get levels of control where we can see what's being spent. Thompson: Okay.
Williams: That's the direction we're moving. Thompson: Sounds good. Hardin: The first thing we
need and the objective now is to get those pay ordinances updated. And I think you can use your
pay register. You know what everyone is making, at least you can start from there. And it shouldn't
be that difficult. Thompson: Right. Hardin: So that being said [, that's what I want ASAP. I'd like
to see those in the Law Department. I don’t think we ask a lot, but that is crucial. And, Mr. Mayor,
you can take a piece of this pie too. Because I think you should direct the Law Department to have
those ordinances updated within the next ten days, tops, because it's not hard. Williams: March
29th is the date, everything has to be in alignment by this Friday. Gottschalk: Again, Council
president rather than a work session tomorrow. Have the executive session when the meeting gets
done. So that satisfies Climer and the Council, okay. Nikolic: Okay. Hardin: But in the meantime,
can you have him, and his department start working on those ordinances. Williams: For every
single person on payroll. Nikolie: Well, Madam Chair, we have to see them. We haven't seen them
because they're in our email. But [ thought Tanya was going to have them printed out. So, for
tomorrow, part of the meeting. Can we just start by looking at them? I mean, they're in my email,



but I thought they were going to be a part of our finance packet. So, if we could start there with
your register tomorrow. Maybe that could be a part of what we do tomorrow, if I may, Madam
Chair. So, we could at least look at who is in the departments. [ mean, for Taunya and I, we can just
start with who's in the department, what they make and what the pay ordinance says. And which
ones we’re missing and why? Because that would be helpful for the new people. At least to start
with that dialog and then move to updating. Because, you know, right now, Taunya and I are still
behind the 8 ball. Because we're still looking at, you know, who's where and what. Matlock: So,
you don't have to be behind the 8 ball because we don't even know yet. Williams: So let me add to
this. Just because we have so much to do with regard to finance, so much. It’s probably literally
only 6 to 8 pages total. They're outdated, they're from like 2003, 2008, 2009. They're like 2 or 3
pages each, they don't include all the employees. So, it really doesn't warrant us to spend time at our
meeting. If we could just take a look over them. What they really need to do is begin the process of
updating. And that's where we need to begin. There are so outdated that, I mean, Brian's $24,000
over the range. That's how outdated they are and how out of compliance we are. Nikolic: Did you
see the I think Jim submitted. I think he sent at least, I don't know, there were maybe like 12 that |
saw. Thompson: Yeah, [ seen that one share with Jim. Hardin: It doesn’t matter if they are in
accurate, Nikolic: We got that; I'm just saying we need to make sure that everyone understands
what we have. Thompson: Maybe Tanya Can print them because T will be doing a host of things.
Hardin: She has them when this first happened. That was the first thing I asked the Law Director
for; do you recall that? And here we are three, four weeks later. So, at any rate, it should not be a
hard task because it's not by name. Most of it is by groups. Thompson: Position. Hardin: That's
correct, position. Williams: Brian, [ have two last things. Where are you at with the 941°s?
Thompson: 941°s, Hillary's redacting all of the employee identification numbers. So, you’ll have
that by the end of the week. Williams: So where are we at with compliance? Thompson: They're
all turned in... Williams: When you say turned in, have they been filed? Thompson: With the IRS,
yes, that's what | mean. Williams: So, we are current as of today for all quarters since you've been
in your position? Thompson: Yes, they are turned in and the last one coming up. She just gave it to
me today to sign off. So, I'm reviewing it and then [’ll submit it. Williams: So the IRS, we are
current with all 941°s that should have been submitted from your date of hire to now? Thompson:
Yes. Williams: There are no outstanding 941°s? Thompson: None at this time except for this
current quarter. It’s due 30 days after March. Williams: Let me just make sure [ have complete
understanding. The 941 is a 2-to-3-page form that you complete. You submit it to the IRS for them
to be able to have pretty much a detailed account of the money that you have already sent to them
for employees, correct? Thompson: Yes. Williams: Okay, when you submit that, does the IRS
then give you a... So, for instance, when I submit my taxes, they say Candace you filed and here's
your tax return. What do you get when you submit that 941? Thompson: Ours are just being
mailed, so { don't get that electronically or email. I could probably opt for some message like that,
but at this time [ don't. Williams: So, you don't have anything to be able to confirm that our 941°s
were submitted? Thompson: We send them registered mail. Williams: So, after they're filed, the
IRS doesn't do any type of electronic form. Where they then show that you've actually submitted
them? Thompson: [ haven’t had an electronic form. Williams: No, that’s a no? Thompson: No.
Williams: Okay, do you keep copies of the 941°s that you submitted? Thompson: Yes, those
would be the ones you will be getting by the end of the week. Williams: Why did they take so
tong? When 1 asked you for these in January? Thompson: Just made a host of things to do and
gathered all the information you said. She's going to do the final point of redacting the employee
identification numbers and then you’ll have everything. Williams: So, you've been here about 16
years. You're supposed to do one every quarter. So, that’s sixteen times four, that's about 64 filings,
right? Thompson: Yeah, you didn't go back that far. Do you want 16 years? Williams: No, but
what I'm asking you is this. When you send that off or file them, you make a copy of what you send
or no? Thompson: Yeah, payroll, it’s usually just handled with payroll. So, they make the copies, |
have to sign off, and we turnt them in. Williams: So, if you just make a copy. Thompson: We have
to go back and grab everything from Iron Mountain if you want 16 years” worth. Williams: ['m not



asking for 16 years, I already said that. When you submit those, and you've made that copy. Why
couldn't you just turn around and make a copy of those. And give those to us to show us that they've
been filed? Thompson: You wanted it collectively, like, so many years cumulative, So, I was just
going to give it to you as one project, one package. [ was giving you what you wanted out of the
records request. Williams: It's the end of March, in January 1 asked you for those. For four years,
four times four, you would have had 16. You're telling me someone couldn’t just run through those
16 that you filed? Just run them through the copier and get it to us before the end of March?
Thompson: Had to put it together, I didn't have much staff. You know, the payroll persons was part
time at that time. So, the end result you’ll have them all by the end of the week, Williams: Okay,
here's what I'm going to request. I've been in jobs where there's something that [ have to do
quarterly or twice a year. And it’s something redundant, it’s the same form. And literally, you're
getting something from that entity that says you did it. Or you're just making a copy that you did it,
and then you file them somewhere. So, sounds like to me, our filing system may not be where it
should be. That you couldn't just pull that file, run those through the copy, and get them to us.
Before two months have passed. Because I did a public records request. Thompson: Yeah, [ know
you did. Williams: So, we're taking two months for public records request. Kind of really two and a
half. Thompson: Yes. Williams: Okay, are we responding to the Auditors like that? Thompson: If
we gather any information, yeah, it takes time. They want ten years” worth of information, and it's
not a onsite. It’s at Iron Mountain, you got to call I[ron Mountain and see what your inventory is. Go
through methodically and see what years they're looking for. So, it can take some time, especially
with a shortened staff, and you're getting a ton of requests for other things. Yes, it could take that
much time. Williams: I thought you had this stuff in place for a month or two. Thompson: We
have, but you'll have it by the end of the week Candace. Williams: Okay, we requested, and I'm
going to request this publicly now. We requested a list of everything that the auditors are asking for
and the status of where you're at. And either yes, I've given them this or I'm still working on this.
We as a Council need to now keep track of that as well. Thompson: They had us kind of'a hush
subpoena so we couldn't forward that to you. So, talk to Jim and see. Williams: No, no, no...
Thompson: It has to be Jim because it was a subpoena. Williams: What you need to do is get it to
Jim, and then he gives it to us. Thompson: Why when Jim is the lead? He's getting the subpoena,
it’s a legal matter. Williams: That’s good to know because Jim said you're getting the request.
Thompson: Yeah, [ am getting them to fill. But this original subpoena went through our law. I'm
Jjust trying to backfill what they're asking for. Williams: Okay. Thompson: He's come out a couple
times. He's giving me a evidence sheet. Then he comes back and say Brian, give me this. So I'm
cooperating with him fully. I'm giving him all the information. Then he wanted email stuff that [
couldn't control. It had to come from the IT guy. So, it's taking time to get all that together, but it's
not to stop. Williams: So, it sounds like you and Jim need to work together. Because what you just
said is Jim is getting the request, and then he has to come to you to fulfill it. So, both of you know
two things. One, what the request is, and you know, when it's being filled. And that's exactly what
we're asking for. We're asking to know what they're requesting and when it is being fulfilled and
what's outstanding. So, it sounds like between the two of you, you all can come up with a list, get
that to Jim, and he can confidentially send that to us. For us to know where we're at in this
investigation and keep us up to date. Does that sound reasonable. Thompson: Yeah. Williams:
Okay, last thing, well, I think that's it. You all have a sheet for the restricted fund names. I'm not
going to ask you to look at it tonight, but tomorrow when we do our finance meeting. If you could
just kind of think about and narrow down some. I looked up all of the different names for a
restricted fund, rainy day fund, reserve budget. There's a bunch of different names that
municipalities use. There are nine different names, if you if you've seen more, we can add more.

But just what would we like this one to be called? So that it could be establish... Gottschalk: Don’t
waste your time on rainy day funds, it’s not going to happen. Williams: Whether we put something
in the fund or not, is up to us but... Gottschalk: It’s amazing you're crying about no money. Yet
you're thinking of a rainy-day fund, that's beautiful. Williams: That's how things work, you plan for
the future. We just need a name for the fund. So, we'll have to, you know, what do we not want to



do? Nikolie: I'm good with number six. I didn't know, are you asking us now or? Williams: We can
do it now if you want. Nikolic: Number six for me. Hardin: Six is good. Davis: Question, is that
what we would put for when we have to pay out all this money for retirement? Williams: No, we
should establish a vacation/sick time fund. Davis: That’s what I would like to have. Williams:
Thank you for that, we need that. Nikelie: But that would be separate from this one? Williams:
Yeah, it would. Nikolic: Just to make a quick point if I may madam chair. The legislation is
requested by Council for the Schade payment. So, thanks to his support is on the agenda and work
session. And you know, just a thought, that salary could kick off the contingency fund. Because it's
been sitting for the last two years. We've been operating for the last I don't know. Correct me if I'm
wrong for the last year and a half. But that amount of money, we can move from his pay line to start
the contingency fund. Since we've been operating for a year or two without using it. Just a
suggestion, that could be the funds that we used to. Williams: He’s been paid. Nikolic: No but
that's what I'm saying. | mean like that money we’ve been paying him; we would use. But you
know what I mean. That money would not have been going to him. You know, we've been able to
operate by still paying him. So, if we took that money and kicked off the contingency fund. I'm not
sure what it is, but it could just be an amount, a safe amount to start it. Not to say we need $500,
$600, $700. But at least we know that the Village has been able to operate without that fund we've
been paying him. Davis: But we still have to pay... Williams: We do have to pay the other acting...
Davis: People, so we could use it out of that fund. Nikolic: So just a thought while we're talking
about contingency fund. Howse: Clarification, so you're saying that we've been paying the previous
Fire Chief that has been on administrative? I think this is all interesting, that we’ve been paying... so
we've been paying two salaries. The Fire Chief and then the acting Fire Chief, right? So, you're
saying if you're no longer paying the one that's been on administrative leave. That money you've
been paying him. Maybe a percentage of that, now that you stopped paying him. Can go into this
reserve for people for a future vacation and their payouts. Nikolic: Or just contingency fund, [ don't
know to what extent we can discuss it. But... Thompson: Ms. Williams had it right; you have to
pay Tapp for stepping up too. Nikolic: It's just an idea. Howse: You’re still doing two salaries
though right? Jim Schade... Thompson: Is going to go to Tapp now. Howse: He just gets an
increase on what he gets. Matlock: Right. Thompson: No, he'll still get the full salary. Matlock:
No, he shouldn't be up to a full salary. But let me ask you a question about Tapp. Tapp is part time
right? Thompson: Yes. Matlock: And I have seen none of your part time employees make the
amount Tapp makes. The last one I looked at, he was making $78,000. So, did you guys give him
some type of increase? Or is he being paid for eight hours versus four? Thompson: No, it’s all
about the composition of Fire Department and just filling their shifts. So they have a, you know, a
time schedule on how they fill their shifts. But, | mean, everyone already when you looked at that
report, was part time. But Tapp, that's why | mentioned [ was putting sixty something thousand in
there. Because that's been a pay differential over the last two years between Tapp and Schade. And
tap is looking potentially be paid along with two other officers, Manzo and Dirocco. For the
changes in shift that they've been in the acting positions. So, [ included that as an assumption in the
Fire Department. Matlock: See, none of this is bought to us. Thompson: It's been conversations.
Matlock: There have been conversations about it. But what I'm trying to say is, I'm already looking
at Tapp. Do your part time employees make $70,000 a year? Thompson: They do, it’s contingent
upon your hours... Matlock: But I'm trying to see... Thompson: Not mines, but administratively...
Matlock: So, each one of them makes $78,000 a year as part time? Thompson: No...Matlock:
That's what I'm trying to say. So, Tapp is making $70,000 a year, tell me was a difference? He’s
supposed to be part-time, and I looked at all your part-time salaries. None of your part time salaries
are equal to $78,000 a year. So, is there a certain type of pay that you're paying him? While he's in
this position that's giving him the opportunity to make $70,000? Thompson: Yes, he's still in the
position as Assistant Chief. Matlock: So, he was Assistant Chief salary at four hours, I mean, for
part time? Thompson: [ don't know, [ don't want to speak wrong about how you determine that four
hours is part time. You'd have to ask Tapp, but he puts in his hours per the manning shit that they
have. Matlock: Is there a salary range for the Chief. [s it one starting at one and he could work



himself up to this. I mean, is there a salary range for your Chief? Thompson: Yeah, between Tapp
and the Chief it’s probably like twenty something thousand-dollar difference. Williams: Well,
here's what we can do. Can you give us his W2’s from 2021 to present. So, we can see what his
total year end pay before Schade left up to now. Nikolic: Right, that’s what we need to see.
Matlock: Because he will be brought up to pay. But with him being the Chief, he wouldn’t get the
full, I'm assuming. That he wouldn't get the full range as the Chief. Because the Chief been there for
years. Thompson: Right. Matlock: He would start at a certain level and then work yourself up.
Williams: Which goes back to the pay range ordinance. Matlock: Exactly, because normally nine
out of ten when they do go into that position. They may go at the beginning range of whatever that
position is. It would be up at the top price for that. Davis: Was Mr. Schade part time or considered
full time? Thompson: He was full time. if he a full time. Matlock: And they are paid for 40 hours
regardless, because normally when you were in that position. Regardless of what time there's an
emergency, you up and you out when you're ready. Thompson: Right. Matlock: [t is no overtime,
It is no whatever, he’s just paid a set salary. Thompson: Yeah, that's why I said the manning
structure. You have to have Tapp elaborate a little more. Nikolic: And Madam Chair, | think the
last time | asked a question about how much he was paid. I think you calculated Councilperson
Williams it was around $100,000. So, if we said $100,000 in the contingency fund, based on what
we were paying him. PERS, salary, and everything, I'm talking about Schade, and I'm assuming this
is public record because we talk about salaries. So, if we just took that cushion the $30,000 and kept
it, that $100,000 could be a starting point, for example. Davis: But he was full time, Mr. Tapp, as
acting Chief is part time. Nikolic: No, but I'm just talking about amount to start the contingency
fund. If we're looking at an amount that we could put in the contingency fund. And understand that
the Village has been able to operate right, while still paying that out to him. Thempson: You still
have to pay it though. I can see the cost of trying to get the $100,000 but it’s still going to be used...
Nikolic: No, no, no I'm saying the $100,000 would go in the contingency fund. Because last year
you paid it ... Thompson: Last two years. Nikolic: So, you've been paying but, the Village has been
operating by paying it. Thompson: Yeah. Nikolic: So, if you took that money away and put it in
the contingency fund, a $100,000. The Village is still going to operate. You following what I'm
getting at? I'm no finance guru either, but I'm just looking for money where we can start it. And if
we have not, and we do have the legislation in our work session for tomorrow, That would require
the reduction of his pay to a dollar. Matlock: But that being paid a dollar is going to be sent to a
fund. It’s going to be set aside until all of this stuff is cleared. Thompson: You're saying Tapp’s
pay? Matlock: Let me ask you a question, does Tapp get PERS? Is he being paid retirement right
now? Thompson: We don't pay PERS for them, we pay like the Medicare. Because they're getting
PERS at their first job. Matlock: Okay, that's all [ want to know. Thompson: All those Firefighters
go into decent fire pensions at their regular job. Hardin: We're doing finances, and my question is
regarding the Engineer. How is that structured? Are we retaining the Engineer Department, by name
of an individual or by company? And when you pay PERS, that person that we're paying now is
leaving the company? Or are you still going to be paying the person that's retiring and adding this
person's name and paying them PERS? What is your understanding of how that’s supposed to
work? [t'll be Matt and not Ed, And Ed will get the credit for PERS. Hardin: Okay, so how much is
involved? Thompson: You talking about just the PERS? Hardin: Just the PERS. Thompson: His
salary is set in that legislation. So, PERS would be $5,300. Howse: You said 1.45? Thompson: .14.
Hardin: So, $5,300 is PER for him? Thompson: Yeah. Hardin: And you're paying... Thompson:
$38,000, we got to contribute the employer share for fifty-three. And it's a small share for Medicare
as well. So, his base is $38,000. Hardin: Did you increase the base, what’s the base salary?
Williams: We haven’t improved that contract. Hardin: [ know we haven’t, [ just need to know
what we're doing. Just give me a minute... Thompson: Yeah. Hardin: What is the salary?
Thompson: $38,000. Hardin: Okay, what were we paying the other person? Thompson: I have to
look back; it was a little bit less. Maybe $35,000 or something, [ know they were asking...
Williams: 36,000, (inaudible) was given twenty-four and he was given twelve. Thompson: Yeah,
so now they want thirty-eight, so a slight increase. Hardin: It’s two thousand and a change of



name? Thompson: With that being said... Williams: [t's almost a 5% increase, right? Davis: [t is.
Hardin: It is a 5%. Davis: We automatically gave him. Hardin: So, with that being said, is he an
employee then? Thompson: Yes he's an employee that’s getting a PERS contribution. But they are
also billing you by that billing structure. For miscellaneous contractual for those engineering fees.
Hardin: So he has a salary plus the engineering fees. Thompson: Yeah. Hardin: I get that part,
so... is that a normal way of dealing with your Engineer in this day and age? Thompson: Our
operation used to be like that years ago, like Paul Grau. They wanted to get that PERS contribution.
So, a portion of their salary, that’s how come, I think Paul, Steve Karnowski, and all those guys. We
had a portion for salary, and then they billed us by firm. Now, the Law Director doesn’t have a
salary. He's billing us as a firm. Hardin: So, you don't pay him PERS? Thompson: No, but Ross
gets PERS, not Climer. Williams: It's a choice as to whether we do it. Hardin: Do we have to pay
PERS to the Engineer? Thompson: Yeah, if you... Williams: No, we do not. Thompson: Yeah,
it’s a state law. Williams: her question was do we have to pay PERS to the Engineer. Thompson:
Well, PERS is set by the state in the pension system. Williams: No, we do not have to pay him as
an employee. No, we do not, it is a contract. Thompson: If you do pay, you have to make that
contribution. Williams: Her question to you was, are we required? That’s a yes or no. Thompson:
But she said required to pay PERS. Hardin: That's my question. Thompson: Right, if you have
him as an employee. You're required to pay the PERS, yes. Williams: We don't have him as an
employee. We have him as a contract. Thompson: No, it’s a two-way street, he’s an employee and
he's a contractor. Howse: He's right, it's been an exception since before I even got here, okay. So,
the way this contract is structured, optional. The way it's structured is, Council elected to pay his
PERS. Because he works as an engineer, as an employee. So, meaning he's on call at your
beckoning call 24/7, you have access to Matt. Anything dealing with structure, design, that is when
his firm, he can solicit all other Engineers. But in the contract, the way it’s constructed. It says he
will be deemed as an employee and will use Chagrin Valley as resources at his need. Is it required
to do it that way? No, but that is how has been structured forever. Hardin: And based on how it's
structured. We are required to pay? Howse: The way it's written, yes. If he's paid on the payroll
side. It is required as an employee that he, just like you guys. You guys are part time, you're elected
officials, and you get a pension; you get PERS. The way the contract is written, it says he will be
deemed and paid to the payroll side. Which requires you pay for PERS. It is not required that he be
paid on the payroll. So, he can be looked at as a 1099, but that is how it's been structured. Davis:
That's a consultation 10997 Williams: It's a contract. Howse: [t is, however, that is how it has been
constructed. So, it is specific to nature, saying he will be paid on the payroll side as an employee.
His resources when he needs, he consults with Chagrin Vally Engineer blah, blah, blah. Hardin: So
based on how it how it's written, nothing to do with history. But based on how it's written, we are
obliged to pay part of PERS. Howse: Based on how it is written. Hardin: Okay, that's what [ was
told. Davis: Do we pay the PERS just on the $38,000 and not this other extra fees? Hardin: Just on
the salary. Howse: So, Brian you're paying the Medicare and everything? Thompson: Medicare
and PERS, yeah. Hardin: He’s our Engineer. Matlock: Well, what does he do? Hardin: These
projects, he's our Engineer on all these projects. Matlock: Okay, but I thought we go through
Chagrin Valley Engineer. Hardin: That's his company. Howse: And partners, any time, like you
said, he has to go measure the streets or the depth of a project, right. He can't just do that by
himself. He has all these consultants, and you have to pay. It would be not just because he was a
contractor. And if he said, okay, I don't know about these roles. I'm going to contract Joe Schmo to
do that. So, he's your advisor if you call him up to say, hey, we got a pothole over here, can you see
about it? He would just call Tommy and they would work together or whatever. If it's a safety issue,
Tommy is going to call. I'm just using it as an example. Matlock: But let me ask you a question.
Because Erica had sent us a message and said that she asked him about PERS. So can he get
multiple cars from every municipality that he works? Howse: It's not illegal. Nikolic: To clarify
Just in that because I knew we had asked about it. And [ asked him, and he said that he gets PERS
from 18 of the 20 municipalities that he works for. Howse: It's not and looking at that contract, Carl
Brown wrote something a long time ago. And when [ read that, and the reason why I asked that



question at the Council meeting. Is because I notice it didn’t say it. Why it stood out to me is that
you had the contract for the legal right. And it specifically said no PERS. So then when I was
looking at the Engineer. That's what I... and you certainly can't expect me to remember how these
contracts are written. Thompson: Yeah, | know. Howse: So that's why 1 asked the question. How
come they're not getting PERS? And why is he getting PERS? Davis: You said we pay Mr.
Cirincione PERS, and not Mr. Montello? Thompson: Yes. Howse: No, no, it says no PERS, that’s
why T asked because it said no PERS. Nikolic: It’s at $7,000. Thompson: Well, he's doing some
prosecution work and then he has a salary as well. So, he... Howse: So, as a prosecutor, he’s
getting PERS? Thompson: Yeah, he's doing prosecution work and... Williams: The old contract,
yes, and I'm sorry so yes. [n that, the other option is to build a contract like we have built the other
contracts with no PERS. Howse: So, it's in the new contract for the Prosecutors, the two now. It
says no PERS in that one, that's why it struck me to ask. Williams: The new one says no PERS.
Once they decided to split it, then they went to no PERS. Howse: Okay. Nikolic: The Law
Department budget 1 think it says PERS. So, with the Law Department budget, there is PERS for
somecne. Williams: Because under the old contract for Cirincione, he had PERS. When they tried
to do this new contract that we have tabled. They took the PERS out. Nikolic: No this is the Law
Department’s budget. Williams: So, in the Law Department’s budget was Cirincione, Assistant
Law Director. That's why you're seeing the PERS, it is attributed to him. Nikolic: Well, the one he
submitted for 2024 has it. Williams: It should be zero. Matlock: So let me ask the question,
because on his new contract... Nikolic: His 2024 department budget has PERS because we talked
about it. Howse: It’s either, or, you have to figure out either or. If he's getting...at one point he used
to be. Williams: Yeah. Howse: This new one says no PERS which triggered the question of why
Engineer, right. Williams: Yeah. Howse: That's why the question was, and he's right because there
was an opinion on that. But now that they split it. It says it specifically says in there no PERS. So,
PERS shouldn't even be considered for 2024. Williams: So, it shouldn't be in the budget anymore?
Howse: For the PERS. Hardin: For those two attorneys? Howse: Prosecutors, right. Nikolic: So
how much are we talking in terms of, for the Engineer’s PERS? Thompson: $5300. Hardin: Yea,
so that's the dollar amount that's involved. Matlock: So, the total for him should be the PERS, the
Medicare.. . Thompson: Yeah, and his salary as well. Matlock: It’s going to add, it’s like double,
But let me ask you a question. So, each one of those contracts, they got 5%? Thompson: The
contracts? Matlock: [ mean, each one of the actual agreements that they have on the board right
now with us, is a 5% raise? Williams: They have increases. Thompson: This one may equate to
5% but may have to go back and see what Ed has resulted in over the years. Matlock: Okay, so
when they say 5%, they just go 5% across the board on us? I mean, it looks like everybody across
the board just did 5%. What’s that? Thompson: I think Ed was kind of acting independently in
terms of requesting $38,000 from the $36,000. Hardin: But it's 5%. Matlock: But it's 5%?
Thompson: Yeah. Matlock: Everybody across the board did 5%7 Thompson: Yes. Matlock: So,
is that just a word that got out to everybody saying Oakwood is giving 5% raises? Thompson:
When they did their F.O.P contract, I did put that letter out. [ said, okay, that's historically what
we've been doing. Maybe not following the law, but I told everybody to schedule their budget for
5%. Because we were historically getting it from the F.O.P contract. So, when they negotiated with
it... Matlock: You shouldn't have done that. Thompson: Yeah, I understand you guys told me.
Matlock: F.O.P is totally different because of the fact that's a union contract agreement.
Thompson: Right, I was scheduled to be in the conversation with the Mayor. He wanted me to
speak for 5%, so... Hardin: Speaking of that, we didn't go over the Mayor's budget. Thompson:
Right. Hardin: Okay, and he said he has another phase of it tomorrow. Thompson: He wanted to
do the Mayor’s tonight. And then, of course, he always does the REC and Senior, so now he has
three to do tomorrow. Hardin: All right, now before we go any further. Is anybody else missing?
Thompson: This year has been kind of orthodox for us. Because we went over Police, Fire,
Council, and Council clerk, you all may want to revisit. And then, I did like the animal warden,
refuse, lighting. Some of the ones left are me, Building, Mayor's Court, Bond fund, our permanent
permit, and | gave you the 201 today for the streets. And then you have a little bit to do for the



sewer, but the sewer is going to be a match for what ED is telling us. Like whatever is going to be
spent, we get an exact match on the grants. Hardin: But do you understand why we are doing what
we're doing? Thompson: Yeah, [ understand. Hardin: [t’s too much, and this is what we have to
do to bring all this in. Thompson: Right, | understand. Davis: You gave us employee accrual
summaries of the vacation time, sick time, and all that. Now, are these hours, are these days, or
what? Thompson: Those are hours, you can divide it by eight to get the days. Davis: Okay, and
what was our limit for the amount we're allowed to carry over? Matlock: Only 40 hours. Davis:

40 hours you're allowed to carry over... for vacation or sick? Matlock: Vacation, sick you can't
really touch. Vacation time is just 40 hours, and they have to get approval from an Administrator.
Davis: So how do we have vacation time, like for example, our Mayor is 240 hours. Matlock:
Exactly, it shouldn't be. Williams: Sick time is only (inaudible)... Matlock: Yeah, you can't really
touch people’s sick time, it’s earned. Howse: That's talking about payout when you talk about sick
time. There's a limit to pay, remember Climer said there's no limit and there is a limit in place. And
there's a limit for vacation, and there's a limit for when you pay out people. It's in your Charter what
that cap is. Thompson: It should be 960 if I am thinking. Like if they anniversary just hit in
February and they had tenure here at the job. And you go to the chart in the handbook and they get
240 hours on the anniversary date, you can see that there. But of course, they need to get rid of it.
Matlock: Well, you could still say 240 hours, but they have to get rid of it. They can only carry
over 40 hours of that 200 and whatever hours that they get. But if they get so many hours, a week,
or a year. Then they still can only carry over 40 hours of that. And it has to be approved right by
administration. Thempson: Yes. Matlock: Okay, because if they do, it's up to the directors to go
through each one of their people. And say, this is where you're at, and I need you to be clear.
Hardin: How are you going to handle those that have gone over? Davis: Yeah, we have all these
people that have gone over. Matlock: You can’t do that, they lost it. Unless they have something in
writing that says 40 hours. Thompson: [ mean, Climer kind of made the [aw known that there was
a certain cap they could have, so. Matlock: And my understanding is you guys had a meeting with
the employees. And you gave them the handbook for vacation time, am I not correct? Thompson:
Yeah, all of the components are in there. Matlock: And they signed it? Thompson: Yes. Matlock:
So, then the employees know too what their limit is on vacation time. But they just waiting for you
to say okay, if not they will go over it. But it's something you guys really have to stress. Even if you
have to Xerox that part out and keep going over with them about vacation time. Hardin: That
brings up something real important. We ask you to give us the list of accumulated time, right?
There should be a column that designates how many | was allowed. You have to keep that a running
account too. Because all of a sudden letters will appear. Hello, so you don't want that either. So,
when you give us the list, there has to be proof of from supervisor that it is approved to be carried
over. Matlock: And the only thing that can be carried over is 40 hours. Not 80, not 160, and put it
on till next year. So, I don't know how y'all will get it off the books. Unless you sit there and you’re
going to let them take the time. You know you will be short during that time period. So, you'll be in
there making up that whatever you got to make. Hardin: There has to be a form. And I'm going to
ask you to make that form. Howse: But that is such a liability to have that on the books. Because
even this ordinance 2008-10, there's a new section. Because I looked at the last one, it was put in...
there’s a section F added that talks about even the sick. And even how they can convert it and paid
out in cash, it even has a cap on that. “Employees who have accumulated more than 960 hours of
sick time may, in December of each calendar year. Convert accumulated sick to cash and be paid
one hour of cash for each three hours of sick converted™. So, there are provisions. Matlock: So, that
means they won't lose all of it, they get something. Howse: [ mean, at the end of the day, they can
only get paid out 120 hours of sick at a time. Davis: Yeah, you have 1323, and your deputy clerks,
the Clerk of courts one thousand two hundred and something, way too much. Nikolie: Because we
understand that was the issue, the buy down. (inaudible) so we can't be on the books. Because when
people start talking about buy downs and pay outs. They have to be able to look and see the
accurate number. So, this all has to be... Matlock: They need to update that, because... Williams:
Did the Law Director confirm if buy downs are allowable? Do we have ordinance for that?



Thompson: Yeah it’s in there you can buy down as long as you don't go under the 960. You can’t
go below 960 if you are doing the buy down. Williams: But if you can accumulate more than 960,
how would you have more than 960 to buy down? Thompson: [ seen somebody do this, for
example, these older individuals. When they passed a legislative to, you know, like Tommy. When
he retired and came back to work. It said it specifically in the legislation. That he was going to keep
his balance frozen and intact. Williams: Did Climer send you that ordinance? Climer’s supposed to
confirm if buydowns were allowable, (inaudible) did he send you that ordinance? Because we didn't
get it. You sent us a payment line report for February, Why are we paying Mount Zion of Qakwood
Village real estate taxes for 2023, in the amount of $1,297.50 cent? What legislation is that payment
stemming from? Thompson: That was some time ago because they had a special assessment on
that road leading back to Mount Zion. Williams: So the special assessment ended. Thompson: The
special assessment for the road, it had somewhat of a schedule on it. But the special assessment
would never go away because Ed put them on there. But we'd have to look back at that legislation
when we did that special assessment adjustment. Williams: They were supposed to end in either
2022 or 2023. We were supposed to pay their real estate taxes forever. Are we doing that for
another purpose? Thompson: You got to look back in that ordinance for Mount Zion. Because they
had a huge assessment on it, it was like five hundred thousand or something. Don't quote me on it, {
know it was a certain amount. But then the legislation kind of said, okay, you can use the center
forever. Matlock: So why are they charging us? Williams: Well, let me go back to where you have
this. You have this in the payment line report for real estate taxes 2023. Are we paying our other
churches real estate taxes? Thompson: No, just that one that was attached with that assessment and
agreement to use the facility. We didn't pay Rome’s or nothing. Williams: Why would our
agreement to use the facility include paying their real estate taxes? Thompson: Back in the
agreement, it was like a real high number. We were paying, like, $20,000 a year or something like
that. Matlock: The church? Thompson: Yeah. Matlock: Why? Thompson: For use of the facility.
Williams: But $20,000 a year isn't $1,297.50, a month. Thompson: No, that's for the year.
Matlock: Okay, so they built a church. Excuse me, | got to get my head around it. They built the
church, but the expense of building their church, the city has to pay for it? You saying $20,000 a
year assessment. Thompson: The ordinance was some time ago and the assessment was on the
property. We had an agreement paying Mount Zion, it was like twenty or twenty-two thousand
dollars for use of the facility. But the deal was the adjustment on the assessment, and then we didn't
have to pay the $20,000. We could use the facility forever without a payment. Davis: But we’re
paying. Thompson: So, that's what happened, but it is in legislation. You have to have time to go
back. Matlock: So, do we still pay? Thompson: We pay on that assessment, we pay one time a
year for the sewer assessment for that property and leading back to the road. Matlock: But excuse
me, don't they bill us for certain times we have used that church? I've seen on here today, three
thousand and something dollars. Williams: In 2019 we paid $24,000. That was the last year
because in 2020 we paid $2700. Matlock: Why we paying that much money? Thompson:

The events in Mount Zion is not directed to them. He (inaudible) the acts that are in there at that
time. Like remember he had Elvis come and he did that gospel fest. That's an event at Mount Zion.
If we paid Mike Albert $10,000, it would go on there. But it wasn't directly to Mount Zion.
Matlock: Mount Zion activities, on here it says $3,000, use of building. It’s in his budget.
Williams: I'm looking at a different Mount Zion, where are you at? Matlock: Look on the bottom
of Mount Zion Activities 2024. And it says $3,000, use of building. Hardin: But we’re suppose to
get it for free. Thompson: Well, he's proposing not to get it for free just usage. He wants to do with
Sam's Club breakfast... Hardin: T don't care, we supposed to get it for free. Williams: Here's one
flag, this should not say events at Mount Zion. If these are events, to Councilwoman Nikolic’s
earlier request to have events broken down. This line item should be events and whatever the event
is. As opposed to events at Mount Zion. Because it does appear that we're paying them, in 2019 we
were. These line items, this is not an appropriate line item. If you're claiming that these amounts
were actually to the actors or whatever they were. Thompson: Yes. Williams: Then it needs to be
under events specifically, not Mount Zion. Thompson: Yeah, it wasn’t to Mount Zion, it was for



the acts there. Williams: The use of building would be to Mount Zion tough. Thompson: Yeah, use
of building would be. Like if you had an event and staff was there. Howse: Brian, question, I don’t
know how we’re conflating these two. The special assessment, that agreement got put in place
because Mount Zion, I have a history on it. This is before you, Mount Zion was complaining about
the shoes assessment they can’t fill. After I left, the Mayor passed legislation for this agreement to
use that new facility. That's for Paving Street, all of that, that settlement was huge. And they were
trying to figure out a way, where can't we work out a way to get rid of the assessment. It’s like
everybody else pays their assessments. We can't do that just because you're a church. You know,
you built a new building. The assessment, paving the curb, that's your responsibility. And all of a
sudden that ordinance came, to allow to say we're going to pay you X amount of dollars to use the
facility.  had an issue with that because to be honest with you. And all of a sudden, that assessment
is no longer in existence. Their assessment is paid off. Thompson: Yeah, it’s done. Howse: So
now, all of a sudden, you're paying to use his facility after you paid. And this is what you did, or
what was allowed. Not you per say, but what was allowed is, we paid their assessment that we put
on for them. We turn around and pay for using the building. Even though we may have used it three
times. Y'all been paying that, that whole time, all those years. And now that assessment is off the
books. Hardin: And we're still paying? Howse: There is no assessment on that building. The city
paid the assessment that we assessed them. We paid the assessment for them. Nikolie: So, about
how much was the assessment take? Williams: About $133,000. Matlock: We should've never
paid that. Hardin: We paid $133,000? Nikolic: And we’re still paying $20,000, the $20,000 went
toward the assessment? Or was the in addition? Williams: Essentially, that's what it was. Howse:
That assessment was stretched out, I almost want to say 20 years. All you got to do is look at the
property tax and you’ll see. IFrom whenever that building was built from like 2000. I mean, I got a
problem with that, and I attended that church. But I'm like, why should my tax dollars be paying for
your assessment? This was before you Brian, this was before you. But that was legislation that you
guys passed. And it came in direct complaint of Mount Zion saying the assessment was too high.
Then all of a sudden, oh, we're going to pay you for using your community center. Nikolie: I'm
sorry. just so I can be clear, I'm a little foggy. But the church decided to build this building. And
then when the tax assessors came in and said, this is what your tax is. They said it was too high and
then asked the Village to pay the taxes. Am I following? Howse: No, so, it's a special assessment.
We did the road to get back there, we already had a part. But in order for them, the paving curving
in that area. The city did the job, we took a note out or bond out for that. I think it's you note, and
the idea was they would be assessed to help us pay the bond off, that assessment. So, we assessed
them and then the money that was supposed to come back to us, to help us pay down the note. And
then all of a sudden a contract came in place. That you're going to pay them to use a facility that
you use like what, three times. Williams: That totaled the amount of the assessment. Nikolic:
Okay. Hardin: I'm glad you reiterated it, because I was on Council. I didn't remember how that
came about. Howse: Yeah, after I left, [ closed after 1 left. Then he brought in, I think it was right in
2007 that he was trying to bring it. Because [ can't remember when it was passed, but [ came to the
Council meeting a fong time ago about that. Along with the Liberty newspaper [ was talking about.
[t was right around that time. Nikolic: But now the assessment is finished? Howse: It's been gone,
because Brian do you remember when I asked you that question. Thompson: Yes. Howse: [s that
assessment, are they still paying that assessment. And you said, “no, it's done”. Hardin: So, here's a
question, why are we paying to use it? Matlock: What we paying to use that building? Thompson:
Or they feel like, when he had his events and they get staff dispatched to do some of these events.
Well they bill when he has his events, and he has staff dispatched to do some of these events. The
Sam's Club breakfast and stuff. That’s what they billing for, this additional staff to handle the
events. Matlock: So, why can't we have it in the communities? Thompson: You can, you can take
it up with the Mayor. Matlock: Yeah, why don't we have in the community center, [ mean...
Thompson: | don’t know maybe the Community center won’t be able to hold it. I don't know, the
Sam's Club breakfast be pretty big when they have it. Hardin: We can send a letter to the Mayor.



Nikolic: What is the Sam's Club breakfast? Thompson: Just get your seniors in and give them a
breakfast, we pay for it. Nikelic: But why is it called Sam's Club? Thempson: We used to use
Sam’s Club facility. But the manager down there left, and he just never changed the name. Hardin:
So, they don't have it anymore? Thompson: No, it was some type of... Hardin: So, what is this on
here? Davis: That's the pay for breakfast food for seniors. Thompson: She must be fixing the food.
Nikolic: Brian, we could with these events. [ mean, cause I know it's not just $1,700 to Sharon. And
also, like, the Blue Canyon dinner. I'd like to know because we saw a check to Billy Donato that
was quite high. And I know he mentioned that he was there. I'd like to see, $6,000, how much is
going towards dinner? How much is going towards entertainment? How much is going towards
subsidizing tickets? So, the Village residents only have to pay 20. Because, and same thing with the
clambake. We have $§4500, how much is for... Davis: That clambake would be a lot more money I
would think, because that is very expensive. Thompson: She moved it to the Hawthorne, she got a
better deal. That $6,000 for the Blue Canyon is probably for the actual dinner cost. Howse: Do they
pay into that? Thompson: They give a small portion, you know, he's always got. Howse: So, it
should be revenue expenses, and that determines... it used to be that way. Thompson: It's still that
way. Nikolic: What's the $30,000 for the Advanced Learning Center? Thompsoan: [ am not sure, he
was going to explain that one today. Nikolie: And $1,000 for the Solar Eclipse glasses. Williams:
Advanced Learning Center, that's not the private fund entity that he was... Nikolic:

Yes it is, and it's under miscellaneous contractual, $13,000 Advanced Learning Center. Williams:
Why is that showing off in our budget? Thompson: I don’t know, we didn’t give him a chance to
go over his budget. The solar glasses are for the eclipse. Davis: But that’s next week, so we already
ordered them I assume. Thompson: We only had a few in but, there was a request to get more.,
Matlock: That's good though. Hardin: That was me, I want nobody to get their eves... What's the
matter? Matlock: How much are they? Thompson: $1,000 to get the level of glasses requested.
Matlock: Did we do a bulk sale warehouse to get these? Thompson: She got on Amazon. Hardin:
She just did it today, so she can cancel it. Nikolic: | asked Tanya for a zoom account and she was
like, we can't. Howse: Are you guys open for the eclipse? Matlock: A lot of places are closed. The
glass. Were purchased and is going on the website, first come first served. Williams: The question
is, where are the glasses going? Are we opened or closed? Hardin: I don't know if we're open or
not, but you can come and get the glasses. First come, first serve. Howse: [ was just asking because
if you're picking up the glasses. Are you open that day, or is there a deadline. Hardin: She’s
putting it on the website. [ called just this morning, I thought about it, other communities were
doing it. So, the Mayor said he would put it [ his budget. Williams: She has a question related to
the budget. Thompson: Our financial (inaudible) he likes to look up a lot of information. He’s
compiling stuft for his companies and everything. So, it's a subscription to these companies. Davis:
Okay, because he has down there, he's got NBC subscriptions, the Barron's report, Matlock: Those
are all financials? Thompson: Yeah. Davis: So, that total is all the subscriptions for $600. Because
you have payments each month on you (inaudible) Williams: Can I get a list of those itemized?
Thompson: Financial and Medical journals? Davis: And the BMI License, is that for him? [ mean,
a license he has to pay for it, or we have to pay for? The $400, it's a BMI licensing fee. Thompson:
Yeah, I'll see what it stands for. Matlock: Do we carry an insurance policy on him driving?
Thompson: Oh, driving, yeah. Thompson: They don't rate him individually for the Village. That
would be on his personal insurance. Matlock: So, if it's on his personal? Thompson: That’s what it
would have to be, ['m assuming if he needs to be rated. Matlock: But I'm just saying because he
carries up a lot of cars. Howse: He’s on our liability. Thompson: She was saying do we rate him.
Matlock: No, I'm saying the insurance company... Howse: The risk management determines year
to year, what your insurance is going to be based on your accidents. Williams: Can you get us a
report of our car insurance rates for the Village for the last five years. They can also give us a report
of how many accidents the Mayor has been in in the last. Thompson: Just the Mayor specifically?
Williams: The mayor specifically because we know he was just in another accident. And after that
accident, when he got another vehicle of the Village from the Building Department. So, yes, the
Mayor specifically. We would also like to know what the policies are around, what happens after



you get an accident in a Village vehicle. Thomspon: Okay. Matlock: And that's for his safety...
Thompson: Right. Matlock: Because he was kind of strangling... Williams: It’s for safety of
others on the road as well, that's a liability. Matlock: And if he goes home in that car and hit
somebody, we're liable. Davis: And the Verizon contract he's putting in here. Who is that for? Or is
that for him? Thompson: Just his phone. Davis: Just for him, he's paying $84 a month? Nikolic:
Sounds about right with Verizon. But just a question about gas. Are we getting gas at Sam's? Or do
we have some type or is it just anywhere? Thompson: Anywhere because sometimes Sam’s Club is
closed and sometimes the Fire Department go to fill them up and Sam's Club is closed. They have
to go to Sunoco or Circle K, so it can be sporadic. Nikolic: Okay, but as a rule, are they filling up at
Sam’s? Thompson: Yes, they go with Sam’s as along as it is open. Sam shuts down after a certain
time, and they provide the cheapest. Nikolic: Yeah, but for? Davis: Who are the ones that we pay
gas for besides the Mayor? Thompson: Tommy drives his truck. Davis: So, we pay for Tommy’s
gas? Thompson: Yeah... Davis: What does he put it under? Because [ don't see anything in the
reports about him. I mean, he has a budget amount, but I never see anything between his credit
cards. Thompson: Yeah, you can see it on all his gasoline line item in his budget. Davis: In his
budget but, I never seen anything on the bills. So, how is it getting paid? Thompsen: You’'ll have to
hone in on his actual card. Davis: Sam's club only has a few people, according to the reports we
got. It only has you have a card... Thompson: I don’t use it. Davis: The village of Qakwood has a
card, Dee has a card, and it was Schade. You still have Schade's name on this. Thompson: So, we
got rid of that one and just put Fire Department for Tapp. Davis: Has it? Because 1 have all the way
up to December on Sam’s and it has since changed since? Thompson: Yeah, we just changed it to
Tapp’s card. Matlock: Is it possible to take Schade’s name off? Thompson: We have, we just took
it off. Williams: Did you cancel the cards? Thompson: Cancelled the card, shredded it, new card
for Tapp. Williams: So, is that new numbers? Thompson: Yes. Williams: For every card that
Schade ever had access to. Thompson: Yes. Williams: Because [ was surprised to still see them.
Schade has been gone since 2022, I was surprised to see us using cards with Schade’s name in
2023, You would think after an incident like that. That we would cancel all cards and reissue
numbers. Thompson: Yeah, we just did. Davis: Okay, so who are we paying gas for again?
Thompson: You figure Tapp’s driving a car... Davis: Tapp driving his car, does he take that
home? Thompson: Yeah, I'm sure... Davis: Mr. Tapp... Thompson: Tommy, the Mayor,
Police... Davis: Dee has charges on here for unleaded gas. So, why is Dee charging unleaded gas
may [ ask? Thompson: Dee’s card? Davis: Yes, it’s her it's her card. She's using her car, her
account, and it's got gasoline charges on the receipts that you have in here. Thompson: Yeah, so, |
have to see if they were using it for the Mayor. Davis: Because we have a Village of Oakwood
account, Brian’s account, Dee’s account, and then we have Mr. Schade’s account for Sam's. That's
the only ones we got. That's four people that have cards. So, who gets to use the Village of
Oakwood account? Thompson: What’s the amounts on there right quick. Davis: One is for $462
and one's $271. Thompson: Yeah, those could be going for some of the purchases for meals for the
seniors. Davis: It says merchandise, COMM, and umables. Thompson: Yeah, some of those would
be for those senior functions. For the meals at the community center. Williams: So, since Mary has
delved into our credit cards. I do think as a Council, we need to have additional discussions around
credit card usage and who has them. Who has access to them, who can keep them in their persons,
and what level of controls we can implement. Thompson: You can just cancel them all and do me a
bigger kind favor. Howse: Just have them sign out. Let them come to you, sign it out, what they are
purchasing, that’s our policy. A person has to come to you and you're the custodian of the card.
They do not have them on their person. Thompson: They come get them, [ need to have them sign
for it. Hardin: How many are there? Thompson: [ listed them all across the board. Williams:
Here’s what...and this is just what I'm proposing. And we can have further discussion when our
minds are more fresh. But I think the cards should be.. and it is going to be a little bit on your part. |
think they should all be canceled because we don't know who maintain numbers that are on a card.
But they should all be cancelled. If you want to reissue one or several, but then you should maintain
those in a locked place and they should have to sign them out. You should create a form that says



their name, date, and what they're signing them out for. [ mean if you’re signing it out for an event.
They should be able to say I need plates, napkins, food. [ mean, if they buy a few extra things. Then
of course, then they provide you the receipt afterwards for itemization. But at least you can then say
[ knew Dee took the card for events on March 26th. Thompson: What about Police if he needs his
like 24/7, or giving it to the Officers? Williams: [ don't know, that's why I said we need to have
more discussion. Because we need to see who's using a card for what. And make sure that people
have them for what they need. But we also need much more level of control around who has a card,
when and why. Because.. Davis: This is abuse. Williams: Yeah. Davis: It’s lots of abuse in here.
Williams: And we really can't track if things are for Village purposes. And now we're under a
special forensic audit investigation. We need to institute some other policies and procedures. That
gives us the control to know what's happening. Hardin: Brian, the bottom line is there's a word and
[ used it last week. There hasn't been accountability and it's for the Village’s own safety. And I don't
think we could have learned a harder lesson than what I think we might be involved in here. So,
when you asked about the safety forces. To me, of all the professions in a municipality, I would
always feel comfortable with Police and Firemen. But that doesn’t always work, [ guess, I don't
know. I think, [ don't care whether it’s safety forces or not. Those cards cannot be left without being
returned within 24 hours of requesting them, and they have to be signed out. And when you say
Police force, what do they need at night? Howse: They have hardly anything. Thompson: They
need gas. Matlock: That's about it. Thompson: Yeah, the ones that [ mentioned about the Police
was for gas. Williams: If you gas all cars during the day, they shouldn't run out of gas by nightfall.
When you're in during the office hours, you gas everything up during the day. Why would you need
gas again at night? Hardin: And there is such a thing as a gas card, exclusively for gas.
Thompson: That’s all they got, is gas cards. Howse: They run the cars for 24 hours, so...Hardin:
They do leave them running. Howse: They do leave them running... Hardin: So, they need a gas
card. Davis: No, for example, Mr. Perry has some charges on your Amazon Marketplace things.
Thompson: The Chief has a Huntington card but his Officers and him have a gas card as well.
Davis: Where do they put the gas on? We don’t have anything with gas. Thompson: He’s puts it on
the Sunoco card. Howse: Brian, It should just be you. And everybody else if they have a reason to
use a card. You have to sign them out, the gas cards are understandable. Davis: Can we get a copy
of the Sunoco bills? Because I only got Huntington and Sam's Club, 1 didn't even know there was a
Sunoco gas card. (inaudible) that happened with the gas card with Sam's Club. You guys remember
that? That was brought you, Tommy brought it to you guys. The Summer kids were using the gas
for the Sam's Club. They were gassing up, and then two people would come behind them and they
would gas their cars as well. They weren’t employees...Williams: That's why I'm saying, just to
say is for gas... Howse: Sam’s Club closed the gas station, and not when they closed the gas
station. Before, when they first started it, it used to be opened all hours. And they changed the hours
because of that. Matlock: But it would be a time too that before... it should be protocol before they
get out the car, they fill it up and turn it in. Davis: So, I need this Sunoco’s and December's
Huntington. Nikolic: Quick question, about executive screenings at UH and gym membership. 1
just think it might be easier to go through some of these questions. So tomorrow we don't have to
spend so much time. So, if we if total expenses for that. Well, first of all, what type of executive
screenings at UH? Thompson: [ think they come out do blood test, check your cholesterol, etc.
We've had a partnership with them, they come out do that. Nikelic: They come out and do the
screening? Thompson: On site and do the screening and check your cholesterol and do some
imagery. Nikolic: On site? Who? Davis: It used to be at UH. Thompson: I'm pretty sure they come
out to the Community Center. Davis: They come out to blood test. Nikolie: So, is it at UH or, are
they coming into this building to do screenings? Gym membership rebates, is this the rebate that
you can get back if residents go? Thompson: Yes. Nikolic: Okay. Thompson: [ have to see if UH
is coming here, or at UH. Davis: What he just did for the Vitamin D, he had them come to the
Community Center. Thompson: Okay. Davis: You have your regular screenings, ultrasound of
your carotid. That was at the UH, but that was at the Bedford UH. So, [ don't know for anybody
who wants to sign up. Nikolic: For employees or just anybody in the village? Davis: Anybody in



the Village, but you have to have proof of residency. Hardin: And guess what? Those are excellent
test. Matlock: Yes they are. Williams: Where is the Vitamin D being expensed to? Thompson: |
think it’s under seniors misc. Nikolic: Why did we only spend $410? And why would we go from
$410 to $5000, if the usage was only for $410 in 20237 Davis: [ think because he only did the blood
test before the Vitamin D. Because we did that in December. Hardin: He had that the day we had
your party. Williams: Question is, why would we then appropriate $5000 for next year if we only
used $400 this year? Hardin: I’m sure it cost more than $400 bucks what went on up there.
Thompson: Yeah. Nikolic: Can Brian please respond. Matlock: There is a gym membership thing
that they have for membership. Thompson: You have the gyms under in conjunction with that UH.
I think we have a lot of them and one of the 101-7799 called healthy Oakwood, it’s not here. That's
probably why it has been low. Because the charges are probably going there instead of his
department. Nikolic: Separate these out, the gym rebates. 1 do not know why they would be in the
same line item. Because this, you would want to know how many people are accessing this.
Thompson: [ guess like healthy or something, separate the... Nikolic: Gym membership rebates
and the executive screenings at UH. Because if we only spend $410. We do not know if it is for
health screenings, or is it for rebate? Thompson: $410 would not be for screening. Nikolie: Ok it
would be for the screening. Nobody got a rebate last year? Thompson: If they did it would be
under Healthy Oakwood. Nikolic: Healthy Oakwood, is that a different line item? Thompson: It’s
under 401-7799, if you open up that book. Nikelic: Okay, I see¢ it. Thompson: Fitness rebate, so
it’s a $1,000. Nikolic: $1,500? Thompson: That is what is projected for next year, I think. But
looks like the rebate is for $1,000. Nikolic: I see the $1.,500, so, recreation center, fitness rebate
program. Thompson: We combined it in one place. Now if he wants it under his program...
Nikolic: s this the Mayor's budget or what? The twenty-two is part of what? Thompson: Oh, this
is, our health and (inaudible) operational contract expenses. Nikolic: Where does it start? Twenty-
two goes back to? Thompson: It starts on 21. Nikelic: And it’s called various operational
contracts? Thompson: Yeah it is, a portion of it is kind of health benefits subtotal. So, you got to
go past that and then you go down to other different categories. Nikolic: Okay, so it starts with
health benefits and then we flip over to. Thompson: The next page as a continuation. Do y’all like
this flip on both page, or should I put them separately? Hardin: Front and back is good.
Thompson: Okay. Nikolic: So, we keep going down, all right so [ gotcha. But it's separate than the
Mayor's budget? Thompson: Yes. Nikolic: So, this isn't the same thing? Thompson: It is,
definitely on the rebates. So, we need to just put it in one place. Unless the rebates want to come
here. He keeps the executive screening in his. Because those are two kind of separate functions.
Nikolic: But if you're projecting... so there was $1,000. Thompson: That was actually rebated in
that line item. Nikolic: Right, but you only got $400 here. Thompson: Yeah, which is probably just
the screenings. Nikolic: Okay. Thompson: So, no rebates went under his line item. Nikolic: So
yeah, if you could clean that up. So, we could be clear what is happening there. Thompson: Or at
least keep the screening there for his budget. Nikolic: Yeah keep the screenings there. But I'm just
saying clean it up so it's not combined. And so, if we're only spending $400 on screenings, then this
can be dropped to $500. Thompson: Yeah, I mean that could fluctuate [ guess depending on the
level of participation you get. So, it would definitely go higher. Nikolic: Right, it could go higher
but it wouldn’t be $5000. I would say like a thousand, [ wouldn't put five. Because you already have
$1500 appropriated in Recreation for the rebates because you only spent $1000 last year.
Thompson: Right. Nikolie: So, [ would budget at least $1000 maybe. So, we don't have

to go through it tomorrow with him. Because it probably, you know, would be too much.

Hardin: Looking at the Mayor's budget, why wouldn’t the Sam's Club catering be recreation? Or is
that one of his projects? He looks at it more like a project or program. Nikolie: For senior
enrichment, is there a fund for senior enrichment? Thempson: It kind of flipped from Sam's Club
to Mount Zion. Hardin: He did what? Thompson: Flipped from Sam’s Club, even though he isn’t
using the Sam's Club, we don't go in there anymore. We have it as other Mount Zion activities, so
that where it will be taking place. Hardin: Oh, so that's how he's justifying the $3,000? Thompson:
Yeah. Nikolic: But these should be under senior enrichment. If these are specifically for seniors, are



they for seniors or no? Thompson: Not that, this is for the Sam's Club senior breakfast. This is just
the catering for Sharon. Nikolic: No, I understand, but I'm asking you, is it for seniors? Thompson:
I would say 80%-90% of people are seniors. Nikelic: Does it happen during the day? Thompson:
Yeah. Nikolic: During the weekday? Thompson: Yes. Nikolic: Then it’s for seniors, it should be a
senior enrichment. Matlock: Can you answer this for me? What is considered miscellaneous
contractual? Thompson: Oh, that's a line item always with Ms. Candace here. But they try to
explain it out. So, he's got a cell phone bill. (inaudible) Matlock: Well I wanted to find out what
that was. Thompson: Yeah, these ones accumulated at the bottom is just showing the details of the
total. Hardin: Oh, I'm very serious, it's not too late. Because they haven't advertised it, she was
going to announce tomorrow. These glasses, I'm serious, so does Council have a problem with that?
Matlock: No, because you'll have people looking and they will get messed up. Hardin: I thought it
was a safety factor. Davis: Also, you don't know if these guarantee that you won’t get hurt?
Hardin: And that's why I called back and I told her to check with the Law Department. To see if
there's some liability in giving these out. So, we'll have the answer tomorrow if you want to do it.
Because she was going to announce it Village wide to pick them up. Matlock: Depending on what
the Law Director is saying, are they the correct UV ray. Thompson: Hopefully, she didn’t order
them. Matlock: Cause [ don't want to get stuck with them. Thompson: [ know she had a few, she
had little hand... Hardin: Yeah, well those are like $30... because I called her Friday, and she got
got them. And I teld her I’d pay them. Because she used that card and don’t put nothing that Mrs,
Hardin talked about on no card. So, [ told her 1 would give her $30 bucks for those. But back to...
the Mayor was passing by her today when she and 1 were talking, And he thought it was a good
idea. And that's when he said he wanted to order more. This came from him, but anything got my
name on it in this Village. I don't want no parts, no crap. Matlock: About how many people you
think would need? We can only use them for that eclipse, that’s it. Thompson: Depends on how
fast you can get the word out. Davis: It's the holiday weekend so you guys are going to be closed
Friday, Saturday, and Sunday. Hardin: And they got all next week to pick them up too. Davis: No,
it’s Tuesday. Hardin: It’s April 8. Davis: And you guys are closed Friday for Good Friday?
Thompson: We had no announcement that we're close. Hardin: April 8", so they got time. I'm
asking y'all seriously, do you want her to do it or not? The Mayor's doing that in his budget, but do
you think it's a good idea? Williams: [ think we just got to (inaudible). You already got it in motion
right? Hardin: No, we can stop it. Davis: We're cutting all this budget, we're trying to cut things.
And then we're going to (inaudible). Nikolic: [ mean, in all fairness, we just had a big back and
forth email exchanges. About classes for Council, to educate them to do their jobs, right? There was
a lot of back and forth. About whether or not we should take classes to educate ourselves as
representatives of the Village, a lot of back and forth. It's been mentioned a couple times about the
fact that we went to NLC. That's for our professional development, right? So, I don't see we spent
fifty, thirty, twenty thousand dollars for other people's education and personal development,
correct? So, and [ know for a fact that my classes were not the cost of these glasses. But if we're
going to go back and forth about educational professional development for Council...Is this what
we're doing? I'm asking. Williams: In all fairness, it was about all the costs. Because there was
food, there were hotels, flights, there was a number of things. The issue also was we're not
discussing things in time enough. For us to be able to think through them, talk through them, and
come to a consensus. So that was a totality issue. However, [ would agree, just expenses overall
until we get control of the budget. But if you already set it in motion. Hardin: It doesn't matter, if
it's $1,000, I’ll pay it. I don't want no problems with nothing with this Village. Matlock: I don't
think we need that many. It depends on the cost of each unit. Williams: How do we get the word
out that quickly to where people can take advantage. Hardin: It's April 8th, so you got a week and a
half. Williams: I keep thinking it’s Monday. Hardin: No, and the fact that other communities have
closed their schools. And they are giving out the glasses, that's what made me think about it.
Nikolic: So, there are other entities that are giving them out? Hardin: Oh yes. Williams: Yeah,
there are libraries giving them out. Hardin: Yeah, I thought it would be something. And for the
safety of those in the community. Williams: However, that encourages additional costs. Because



what...we got to drop flyers to tell people they are here? Hardin: No, she's putting it on the
website. That's the best we could do. Williams: Okay. Hardin: But better yet, we can cancel. I'm
serious, we don't have to go through that. Brian, tell her tomorrow cancel them if she can. Matlock:
We don’t have anything in here but Billy DiNado. Nikolic: There’s a check for $4,500, what is
this... in the month of February, it's a check reclass. Where did this money go? Thompson: That
Bill DiNado was initially for a dinner show. Matlock: That he's doing in November. Thompson:
Yeah, but what happened Was one of those shows is canceled. So, it’s allocated for economic
development for when the Mayor meets with these companies. There’s this film, [ don’t know if
y’all seen it. Matlock: That he does on his Apple cellphone. Thompson: Oh, yeah. Matlock: So,
we're going to pay him $4,500 to film on an Apple cellphone? Thompson: Film and doing editing
to the old then and now. Matlock: And all he's doing is putting a couple little clips in. Thompson:
That's what he's doing, yes. Hardin: How much is it? Matlock: $4,500, you don't even pay a
professional person that kind of money. Nikolic: I saw the video; | saw exactly his editing software.
I own a production company, | am a Editor. And trust me, what that video is. And I explained this
to the Mayor afier [ saw it. Especially because... I'd like to know how much he's been paid to be
completed up to now. Matlock: Tens of thousands of dollars. Nikolic: Because right now, what is
this $4500? Thompson: It's for economic development for editing that film? Nikolic: All right,
well, what I would suggest is maybe we should have a Council view it. Maybe it's a good time to
have Council. Hardin: He showed it in here. Something about a chicken doing something at the
end... Thompson: No, we showed the old smokestack industries back in the day. And then he has
to triumphal music showing new companies that would come in. So, every time there is something
new, like Dunkin Donuts just came in. You got to go back and edit the film. McBee came here, got
to go back and edit the film. Williams: Okay, [ know it is late, two things. Brian we need to go
through the entire, 2024, zero you gave us. Anything that says other supplies, other expenses,
miscellaneous. We have to develop a better system than other, that's one. Two, I see a whole lot of
cell phones for people that sit in offices. And I think we can start cutting... Matlock: Who has
cellphones? Davis: Building Department, 3 employees... Williams: We need to know who all have
cell phones and what their job description is. Because we need to make some assessments about it.
To see if those cell phones are necessary. Cell phones are not cheap, and it doesn't look like they're
really getting a group rate. Cause [ know I pay about $100 per month through Verizon. And it looks
like they're paying about the same. So, if there's no group rate and you don't need a cell phone. Then
you don’t need a cell phone. Thompson: 1 know we negotiated those safety forces phones. Davis:
Yeah, but we're talking [ike Building Department. Williams: The Building Department has four
phones and there’s like five of them. Why? Davis: They're sitting at their desk. Nikolie: They just
need one phone, and if one of you is going out to do jobs. Take the Building Department. ..
Matlock: You got to worry about it because they aren’t going out. Williams: I mean, [ would even
say pushing it would be two phones. In case two of them have to go out. But, four and five phones,
that's excessive. So, we need a listing of all who have cell phones and what their job description is.
Davis: And what we're paying for them? Thompson: Do you actually need the bill or just a list?
Williams: No, you can just give us a list. Davis: Are they all paying exactly the same amount for
their coverage? Thompson: ['m sure Safety Force’s is probably a little lower. Davis: ['m talking
about all of our employees that have them. Because they're paying $84.. Williams: I mean I know
our safety needs them. But the rest of these departments... Matlock: Who else have one?
Williams: Service has them... I'm just wondering if all of them are out at the same time? Because if
they’re not all out at the same time, they don't all need them. Matlock: I could see the directors
having them. Thompson: Yeah, you figure Tommy and Corey...Matlock: Yeah, | can see directors
having them, but not like... Thompson: { don't know if Tommy calls them on 24-hour plowing.
Williams: So, that's what I'm thinking because [ know for my job I can get a call anytime, day or
night. So, they pay for my cell phone bill for that reason. So, I'm thinking about service, and they
have all these seasonal things so I could see them needing a phone. But are they all out at the same
time? Like do they all need? Hardin: [ mean, so the objective is to have a phone when you're
working. And so, two phones being signed out is plenty. Because you have two people that never



leave the office on assigned inspection. Davis: That’s the Time Warner bill, you’re looking under
service for the Time Warner. Williams: Is that (inaudible)? Davis: No, but they only have
Tommy’s cellphone. Williams: Is Time Warner $4,000 per year? Thompson: Tommy uses that
Time Warner, that’s just the cellphone and Time Warner in that. Williams: If Time Warner is for
weather it should be its own line. He uses that as equal as essential equipment, right? Thompson:
No, it’s just a contractual service. Williams: What I'm saying is he needs it to do the job of being in
the Service Department, right? Thompson: Yeah. Williams: Because weather is important in Ohio.
So, it should be a separate line item because then we can't see what their cellphone costs are. To see
how many people have cell phones. We need to be able to see itemized costs more clearly in our
budget. A lot of things are grouped together. Thompson: You may want the detail; I’ll have to run
the detail. But it's going to be a real thick report to see everything. Williams: We don't need you to
run the detail. But if you separated them out in line items. Then we just knew Time Warner is X
amount of dollars. Because that's all that Time Wamer is, right? Thompson: Yeah, just a
subscription fee every month. Williams: So, if it's something he's had for a while. Let's just do a
Time Warner Cable weather report subscription line item that we can do separately. Thompson:
Okay. Williams: It feels like things are being tucked in places. And we can't always determine
what's tucked where and what exactly is labeled as what. Thompson: Yeah, [ see what you're
saying. Probably just get cleaned up over the years to kind of combine some of those. Instead of
having like another ten lines, you know, segment out services like that. Davis: Yeah, cause Fire
Department has a lot of cell phones. I mean, they have $6,000 worth of cell phones. That's a lot of
people, I know they have to have a couple cell phones. But I can’t figure out... Hardin: Why do
they have so many? Davis: I don't know. Thompson: I can check what may be included in there.
They have an internet plans to access that Ipad they carry. Davis: Okay. Thompson: Let the doctor
know I'm coming with a patient or something like that. So that might be the case, I’ll check with
Tapp. Williams: If that's under there and you have it labeled as cellular phone. The internet
technically isn't a cell phone, right? So, then we're thinking this cost is super high for something that
it's not actually for. So, maybe if we break that out into internet service for medical or something so
that we know what that is. Because it looks like to me, it could also be in a few other places that we
don't really... other expenses, equipment... Thompson: Well, see this one has single cell phone.
While the other one had Time Warner cellphone. So, you just amassed a cell phone code across the
board if they got it in their department. Williams: Yeah, so if there's internet in there. Then do the
same thing that we did with service and break it out. I'm looking at this medical oxygen supplies
maintenance smoke and CO detectors at $26,000. Thompson: Medical oxygen, I'm sure they have
to replenish those oxygen tanks on the fire trucks squads. Sometimes cots do go bad, and they're
very expensive things. You know, the ones they drop down and bring you on a cots. And, the
smoke and CO detectors, that's where we may be making the purchases we give out to the Village.
Hardin: Can we go back for a minute regarding how you handle credit cards that you are aware
that were misused. How did you say you dealt with it? You did what to them? You destroyed them
or? Thompson: No, I destroyed Schade’s cards, but these other ones are still active. Like for the
Police Chief, Tommy has one for Home Depot, that whole list [ gave you of who got the cards.
When [ said destroyed, I had gotten rid of Schade’s. Hardin: Just that one? Thompson: Yeah.
Williams: Sorry to be jumping around, we have a lot of work to do. In terms of when I look at
wages and each of these departments. And us being able to align the job descriptions that we're
asking for with those ranges. And also align that with the payroll register. Like we have to make
sure all these numbers align with this projected number that you have now. So, I'm just giving you a
heads up. We've got some extra work to do around that. Thompson: Okay. Hardin: Piggybacking
on, what Councilwoman Williams just said. Until I guess... the 5%, these figures that you came up
with, these percentages. It's based on what they're currently being paid. That's what you used right?
Thompson: Yeah, the base wage. Davis: Building Department, you have the wages for Marinucci,
Lillie, Debbie, Aaron, and a new hire digital clerk. Now, [ thought we already had a digital clerk
working for him? Thompson: Yeah that description would be somewhat old. She's been there a
while. Davis: So, she's been there, okay. Because he did ask for another one when he talked to us.



That's why I wanted to make sure...Thompson: Another one? Davis: Yeah, he wants a second
person. That’s what he told us... Thompson: That digital clerk if still there but... Davis: So, [
would like to know what their hours are, what they work. Because he's mentioned that they're all
different hours. And he makes up his own schedule over there. Williams: They're supposed to now
include their hours for the positions with those job descriptions for us. So, we have ¢verything in
one place. Davis: So, we will have that, or we don't? I haven't scen it. Williams: We don't have.
Thompson: No, we don’t have the hours. Williams: Job description to be included, the salary
range, the current pay for that position, and the hours for that position. I think that was everything.
Davis: [ thought we did that, but [ don't see it. Thompson: We can just change the digital clerk to
say her name. Davis: Yeah, it just says new hire digital clerk. That's why I said he did talk about
hiring another one. Thompson: Yeah, that's just old. Davis: The one that’s been there? Thompson:
Yeah, I’ll just put her name in. Davis: But we never gave approval. [ thought we only gave her so
many months or one year. But still officially...so, she's full time? Thompson: Yeah, she came
about a year and a half ago. Williams: It was supposed to be temporary. Davis: It was temporary
thing back then when we voted on it. It was when I first came, when I first got voted in. Williams:
It was supposed to be temporary. Nikolie: So, quick question about a couple things. So, the $4,500
was paid, but it was reclassed to Billy DiNado. Thompson: Yeah, because the Mayor canceled the
show that he was supposed to show up to perform. Nikolie: [n February? Thompson: Yeah, he got
prepaid for any upcoming. Nikelie: Prepaid? Thomspon: Yes. Nikolic: Typically, you get paid after
or... Thompson: I mean some of these acts and stuff is like a prepayment. Then you pay them the
rest when it is over. But he is not going to perform, so the Mayor reclassed as digital editing for the
economic development. Nikolic: Okay, what [ would like to request is to freeze any further
payments to Billy DiNardo. Until we...because he's just strictly entertainment? Williams: I'm going
to suggest that as we introduce an ordinance to have all any expenses approved by Council. No
matter the amount, going forward for the time being. Until we're out of the special audit. We'll have
to talk through a process and if everybody agrees. But I think we should do something like people
should request what they need to spend for. Fill out a form, it gets to us, maybe on Friday we
review after we've approved. Then a PO can be created. That way we have some level of control
around exactly what's being spent within the Village. Because right now 1 just don't think we have
that. Nikolic: And I agree with Councilperson Williams, and only reason why I say that is because
if it is for economic development. We understand that a lot of these deals are coming to us. We
don't have to solicit for our deals. And if this piece is a solicitation piece, a lot of cur deals have
come to us without having to solicit or show this video to anyone. So, we've been working on this
video for a number of vears. And having seen it, [ suggest that we get the Mayor to show the rest of
Council the video as well. [ would like to suggest that going forward, until we do have a better
handle on the budget. That we freeze that particular, because right now, he's doing deals, right? He's
doing deals, we don't need to solicit deals. And if that piece is for soliciting economic development.
We’ve never used it, because it hasn't been finished, right? So, to keep paying five grand a month or
upwards of how much? This was $4,500 we paid again. Or however much we pay, however much.
But if this was reclassified to economic development, this $4,500 was paid in February?
Thompson: Yes, to DiNado. Nikolic: For that video? Thompson: No, initially it was for his
performance. He has some performances lined up in his contract. The Mayor had reviewed it and
canceled one of the performances. So, he kind of reclass for some of the editing that he's doing an
economic development film for those dollars. Matlock: Can we get our money back? Thompson:
Moving forward though, you can take action for him. Nikelic: ['m trying not to take action for him.
I'm trying to take action in a sense of making sure that our dollars are spent in the best interest of
the Village. We are not targeting Billy, let's be clear about that. But he is entertainment, right? His
sole function is entertainment and so if we scale back on things that are strictly entertainment. For
the time being, is what I'm saying, because he's been paid $4,500 already in February. Matlock:
That's three shows. Nikolic: Right, [ know, because I remember the unit band that was so
outrageous. That I suggested for the swearing in was $1,500 for a DJ and a band. Williams: $1,500
for 5 people... Matlock: That's why I said that’s 3 or 4 shows that you could be doing. Because



Hughes wasn't even that much, Williams wasn't even that much. Thompson: Are you guys doing
that October Fest again out of your budget for 20247 Williams: Right now, we would like to but. ..
Matlock: We would like to do something on the holiday. Williams: We have to discuss all this
stuff because there's a lot that has to change within this budget. Nikolic: Because that $4,500 could
have gone to that. Thompson: Yeah. Williams: But the last thing that I have is you gave us a 2023
appropriations versus 2023 with the final expenses back in January. And there were about six areas
that went over budget. [ would like to see the details on how those particular funds went over the
budget. I had requested them before. Thompson: | will take a look at it. With rubbish disposal, the
problem is (inaudible) the fees we have with waste management. Williams: I know but we're under
contract, right? Thompson: Yeah. Williams: So, I'm wondering how it went over $11,000 from the
contract. So, we got this at our January 23rd meeting. It’s not here, I brought it with me. Because
there are approximately 6 or 7 firms that went over what we appropriate for them in 2023, And [
wanted the details surrounding why they went over. Just as we prepare for this year, to make sure
that that doesn't happen. Some accounts went over $11,000, one of them was over $112,000. So, I
Jjust wanted some more detail. Hardin: Which account was that? Williams: I'm sorry, this is not
from this meeting. But rubbish disposal went over by $11,000, Mayor’s Court went over by $2,800.
This is over what we appropriated for 2023. Health benefits went over $102,000, our transfers out
were $57,000 over what we appropriated. Qur capital 401 account was $213,000 over, our senior
center account was $3,385 over. And I just wanted to look at exactly what went over. Nikelic: Oh, I
just remember, in our last meeting regarding rubbish in the new waste management contract that we
were reviewing the work session. Mrs. Hardin asked about the tipping fees. And the tipping fees are
what we get when the other municipalities dump the garbage in our waste management?
Thompson: Yeah and Transfer station. Nikolie: How many municipalities are dumping?
Thompson: I'll have to check with Tommy and Vance from waste management to see. Nikolic:
And | think you said that it's probably a wash, right? What we're getting and what we’re paying?
Thompson: Yeah. Nikolic: So I think, [ mean, I'm the environmental person. I think, we should do
a kind of a fee study. To kind of look at all the fees across the board. Because I don't think it should
be a wash. I think we should be getting a lot more for them bringing their garbage into a waste
management station in my backyard. Williams: Or which is what [ was going to say, I'm glad you
brought it up. I didn't want to talk about it tonight. But our fees are going up quite a bit from the
beginning of the contract to the end of the contract. [ don't know if you review the old fees as
compared to the new fee structure for the next five years. They're going up like $1 to $2 per year.
And [ remember when [ first got here, we said something like our rates were lower or moved at a
lower rate. They increased at a lower rate than other communities because they were here in our
community. But it doesn't look like we actually have any benefit to that contract. So, 1 just wanted
to flag that as well. Nikolic: Tommy made a mention in the last meeting. He kind of made a
compatison. But my my point is, if we are looking at what we're paying in the fees we're getting in.
If it's a wash, it should be like this, right? Just like he said we get a million from using the
ambulance. I think we should be getting a lot of money from people sending their garbage over
here. Because 1 haven't done any information about, you know, emissions, gases, all the stuff that's
in the air. But there's a reason why they don't want it in their neighborhoods. And if we are going to
be affected by it. | think we should look at these, everybody's raising their fees. When was the last
time we raised our fees for doing that? Davis: You want to do 5% on wages, but we're giving them
the same price that we’re charging them. Nikolic: Exactly, we should do a fee study. Every fee that
we are charging across the board. What is it? When was the last time that we raised it? And you
know, because we need to start getting income coming in, you know. So, everybody's raising their
rates. We need to make sure that we are as well. So, [ don't know if we need to hire a consultant to
do that. If that needs to be something we work in the budget. If that's something you can do. But |
Jjust wanted to put that out there. Because that was something we discussed about the waste
management contract. And for me, that's important because all that garbage being processed right
here. You know, there is some emissions and. .. Davis: There's smells... Nikolic: Yeah, it smells...
Davis: Especially summertime. Nikolic: Yeah, there's a byproduct to that. So, it shouldn’t be just as



tonnage, right. Because I'm assuming it's being charged for tonnage. There should be some health
and safety factor factored into that. { don't know how you do that. But if anything, it should be
increased based on inflation like everybody else. Hardin: Madam Chairperson I will not be
(inaudible) this is too much. Williams: {s there any other thing? Hardin: So, the the biggie. ..
Thompson: the glasses? Hardin: Yeah, 1 will take care of that first thing in the morning, I don't
want to be frivolous. Back to the pay ordinances, when do you think you'll have those up there? It
shouldn't be that hard, because now it's only 20 something employees in there and there in groups.
Thompson: Well, you got the 20 employees, and your 60 something Firefighters. Hardin: So, their
pay ordinances is by name for each one of them? Williams: There should be pay ordinance for
Police, too. It should just be in the FOP, every everybody should have a pay ordinance. Hardin:
Are you saying that each fire person has their own salary? Thompson: Yeah, it would be probably
by job duties. So, if you're a lieutenant, captain or just a Fireman... Hardin: Right. Thompson:
First class, second class, third class. Hardin: Right, that's what I'm saying, it's not by individual.
Thompson: Yeah. Hardin: Okay it's by job assignment. So, it shouldn't be that difficult.
Thompson: Yeah. Williams: You're talking about two different things. There actually is a pay
schedule by job description. But then there's a pay ordinance for every employee; so, there’s both.
Hardin: I'm starting with the pay ordinance... Thompson: You said by name or just by job
description? Because I've never seen it by name. Williams: So, when somebody starts the job, that's
when they should have a pay ordinance. They're incoming, right? Thompson: Yeah. Williams: So,
we have a lot of people that don't have that. Thompson: Like if you got Council Clerk and whoever
is coming in. It should just say Council Clerk and a range. Hardin: That's what ['m saying.
Williams: But if you’re hired... Thompson: Not so much Tanya as a name...Davis: No, no name.
Williams: But she does have one and it includes her name. Because when you first start it should
include your name. The pay schedule does not include your name. Pay schedule should be by job
description. And that is some of what we received. The salary ordinance is in our email. But the pay
ordinance should be what everyone started. The fact that a lot of them are not done is why we have
to go back and do that. Which is why we don’t think it's normal right now. But they didn’t get done.
Thompson: No, we’ll get the drafts together and make sure we got it tweaked how you want it.
Nikolic: My question is, maybe I'm not understanding. But how can they update... I thought the
issue was that we needed to approve the ranges. How can they update the ordinances without our
approval? Thompson: No, it will come to you in an exhibit form. Nikolic: Oh, I see, you're going
to update it and then submit for approval. Thompson: Yes. Nikolic: Gotcha, okay, I'm on board.
Matlock: But should those ordinances have the pay raise added in to them this year before you do
it? Williams: No. Thompson: You should probably set the range. Williams: (inaudible) affect the
range. Matlock: Yeah, you would have to because if not, you're going to go back in. You're going
to be just updating for each... Thompson: Each class of job. Hardin: Yeah, that's the first impact.
Williams: That’s what we want to have. Because that should be the procedure. So, we need them
for where they are right now. Hardin: How long you think it'll take you to get that? Thompson: [
got to go back and look at the template just to see. And then, I got to have communication with the
directors. The biggest part is Police and Fire they are usually most of the employees. The
Administrative at 22 shouldn’t be so bad as he's always referring to. Nikolic: Well, if you needed
to, you know, the Police has already gotten theirs. So, if you need to so we can analyze what needs
to be done. If you start with the people who we need to ook at, then you can leave Police.
Thompson: Yeah, the Fire and Administrative support. Hardin: But Brian, let's go back to how
this happened. After you get this squared up, and if ['m not mistaken. I'm hearing 2008, that would
be your starting point there. And then you'd have to go back and pull alt of the increases over the
years. To get this year to start with. Thompson: Yeah, we'll start back, that eight was already the
ternplate. But of course, it have to be updated by department, position name, the range of pay. I'm
sure it got some hours structured in there per person on the pay. And I mean, a lot of the Police as
you said, we may not have to worry about. They always kind of had separate ordinances related to
the FOP contract. Hardin: But we should never get this point again. Because going forward. ..
Thompson: Well, we should do like a three year trajectory to at least put some ranges in place.



Hardin: No. Williams: No, that’s what we want to prevent you from having. The ability to move
within that. Until we all get on the same page, right. Because it seems like right now Administration
and Council are not working in alighment with each other. That's what it seems like is happening.
So, until we are all on the same page and moving in the same direction. We want that range to be
for what it is right now. Then we can go back and amend that. Because that's how that this action
should happen. It should be an amendment and not just you all being able to constantly increase
within this range. Thompson: But the one that will create. We want to just take employees salaries
as they are right now. Don't put a range, just show where it is now. Hardin: No, no, start right
where you are now. That's the only way you’ll get it accurate again. You have to be where they are
now. Thompson: Right, but what if they are there now? Even if y’all did 1%, don’t put a range?
Hardin: Don't worry about that. Williams: The range you should have, should be the old range, the
last. So, for instance, your last range was $50,000 to $70,000. Hardin: That's not going to do it
today. Williams: That is what we want to see because we want to know what the last range was. So,
we want to know where we are at. You're out of your range. But we want to know that that's where
we were at. Hardin: But you got the right idea. You got to pull the last template used. Pull the
legislation and use the old template. That'll make it easier on you okay. And then you want to know
what that person not by name. What that position is making now. Thompson: Right. Hardin: And
just stop right there and we can go from there. Thompson: Okay. Hardin: But once we pull
through this. There has to be a procedure in place, every year pay ordinances should be updated by
the Finance Department. Thompson: Okay. Hardin: Those ordinances should be maintained in
your office. Williams: Which means when you update them, then we get it to approve the
legislation. And that is how we know something is changing, right. So, we're never in this place
again where you're asking for increase. And then we're saying, well what's everybody's base. We
have that ordinance, that's been approved. That is how that should work. If Mrs. Hardin should
leave. God forbid we all go to NLC or somewhere else and we're not here. What exists to tell the
next person what to do? Thompson: Right. Williams: So, that's why this is because it has to live
somewhere. [t doesn't just live with us. You could leave tomorrow. Where is the information for the
next person to pick it up and continue on. Thompson: Right. Hardin: And I'm going to say
something. I'm going to find out what happened... Thompson: With what? Hardin: How we got to
this, first of all, it started with assumptions. Thompson: [ mean, we didn't update the ordinance. We
did raises per the FOP contract. [t just accumulates over the years without pay ordinance.

And, you know, [ came and brought the budget. Apparently, not the right process. We should have
had the pay ordinances in place. And that's how it kind of just escalated to this point. Hardin:
Okay, if you need help I think you need to contact the Law Department. Thompson: Oh, yeah, for
sure. Hardin: And pull in help and work weekends because we need this ASAP. Thompson: Yeah.
Hardin: This is not a good situation. Williams: And the last thing I want to make super, extremely
clear in trying to work together. That means everybody is trying to work together. And I am the
finance chair. So, when you get directives from Council people, we should all be copied.
Thompson: What about individual requests? Williams: We all have the power as electeds to make
individual requests. Yeah, but if you get an individual request. You should be bringing all of
Council up to speed. So, should Council members. But if it's just so happen that somebody doesn't
know what somebody else is doing. You are the Finance Director to communicate what is
happening. Thompson: But [ don't want to be chasing down everybody. Williams: You don't have
to chase down everybody. If [ request salary ordinances from you. When you send them to me, copy
everyone. Thompson: So, you're saying take individual requests. But when you respond, give it to
everybody. Williams: Everybody should have the same information. Maybe I need it, maybe [
don't. Maybe I'll need it later. But if we all have the same information. That's how we get on the
same page. Hardin: Especially now, I want you to know, we're all in this together. Just until this
thing works out and beyond. This, isn't it, the politics be dire right now. We got to figure out how to
decide how to get this in order. And it's not that difficult... Thompson: Well this will be the first
big step. Hardin: It's a wakeup call. Thompson: Yeah. Davis: Do you need our receipt from that
class we took? Thompson: I need it collectively so I can do a reimbursement for y’all. Williams;



Everyone all set? No more questions for tonight’s finance meeting? So, we have a finance meeting
next Monday. Will we have one tomorrow at six first, right? Thompson: Yeah. Williams: And
we'll go through these budgets that we didn't go through tonight. Thompson: Yes, and then I was
going to put together some special revenue budgets as well. Williams: Okay. Thompson: But you
already got SCMR, so I'll follow through with the rest. Williams: So, then we have the April 1st
finance meeting. You did get that notice that we'll have meetings every Monday? Thompson: Yes.
Williams: Except for April 8%, and we'll start at 5 p.m. on April 9th and April 23rd to give us a
little extra time. Thompson: And for budget to be passed, you don't want the 5%. You want two
quarters, I'm still not sure, but I'll check. As a exhibit coming along the past. So, we've made our
obligation by Friday. Williams: Correct. Thompson: But when would the meeting be to pass the
budget? Williams: If you can have it tomorrow, we wouldn’t need a special meeting, right?
Thompson: No. Williams: [ mean, because we're not doing anything extra. Thompson: The 25% I
didn’t have the raises in there. So, I could put another quarter on it. Williams: There's no raises,
Jjust another quarter. Which puts the ball back in your court. For us to review all the documents
we've asked for and you to get them to us. So, by June 30th, we can actually take a look at whether
we're doing increases. What they are, so on and so forth. Thompson: Okay. Hardin: And in you
know what, in all fairness to the empioyees, let's let's have that talk. Because the message is going
out and I don't blame them. You know, June, half the year is gone, you know. So, why am [ not
getting my raise. Without being political, [ think they deserve an explanation. That it has nothing to
do with whatever (inaudible). But there's information that we have to have to be in compliance. We
cannot pass a budget until we have everything we need. Thompson: Yeah, because I don't want to
keep coming in here just combative. I don't think it's good for anybody. Hardin: That's why we're
doing this now. I don’t want to be sitting here with Candace all the time. You know, going back and
forth. So, I'm just looking... Nikolic: We'll get there. Thompson: Yeah, we'll get there. Hardin:
But kind of share with the Mayor, this is the objective. And I don't know if this is appropriate.
Council I want you to think about it. If any employee would like to meet with us, we'd be glad to to
meet with them. This is no secret.., Thompson: Right. Hardin: We plan to give a raise, but we
have to know where we are; it's crucial. Thompson: Yeah, you got to know the numbers. Davis:
With their paychecks or however you do it. Have a letter in there about that. That we cannot do the
raises or anything until June 30™, and we have everything in compliance. Williams: We can amend
the budget at any time. We do have to have all the information. I guess we can draft a letter from
Council just to say... Hardin: I think we should, it’s only fair. These people are just, you know,
they have families. They are wondering what's going on. Nikolic: But because we have until June
31st. That’s not to say that’s how long it's going to take. Hardin: And let them know that it will be
retroactive, okay. Williams: Yes, [ think we need to be mindful of not making promises that we
don't know if we can keep. We really do, and it's not that we're saying we're not going to. We're
saying we need to look at all the numbers. That's it, period, point, blank. When you go out on that
limb and start making promises that you may have to walk back on. That's when you put yourselfin
that position. Hardin: Absolutely, that's true. Williams: We are going to be fair, we are not trying
to be unfair. But we need to know our numbers. Hardin: And [ think that's the that's the message
sent. We have to be fair and accountable. Those are the two words ['d like to go out to the...
Williams: Accountable to our employees and our residents. Hardin: Yes. Williams: Because this
money also serves our residents. Hardin: Most definitely, so, Mr. Finance Director or finance
chair. If you want, I'll help draft the letter or all of us get together. And that letter should go out
using those words. We're going to make certain that we are accountable to the community and to
you and fair in our dealings. But the objective is now to get a full understanding of the finances,
period. Williams: Okay. I... Hardin: That'll stop the rhetoric for a little bit. Davis: Yeah, at least
for a little bit. I mean, just so they have something in their hands. Nikolic: It's not a crumb
(inaudible) you know, we just need the space to work, Without pressure and moving in a methodical
method. [ think that's what we want to do. We want to move methodically; we want to move
informed. And we just want to make sure that we do the right thing. Thompson: It’s
understandable. Williams: I did want to throw this back. It just puts a whole another level of how



you work. This is in your court because now, we are just trying to finish this, right. And we're going
to fully expect to start 2025 budget going forward in August. September, right? We're going to be
right back at it. So, you need to understand that this is a whole year intensive thing. Because we're
going to get this thing right. And no, [ don't want it to be arguments, but I'm not going to back down
on us getting it right. Because now's the time to get it fresh, right. Thompson: Okay. Nikolie: And
having said that, I saw proposed legislation. This was something that we saw in proposed
ordinances. Something that came up in our OML class. I would like to propose an ordinance that
says that we actually do get our finances by October, September. So, we can close out the books by
December 31. [ mean, so we're not talking in February. We can't have a dance for the for the babies
for Valentine's Day because we don't know. 1 mean if we have an ordinance that says we get our
finances by October. We can have a final budget by December 3 1st. There were some pros and cons
stated. For example, when their budget is complete, they can get out to bidding first. Davis: Earlier.
Nikolic: Earlier, and while he didn't say there were tons. But just so we can free up our right
resources to focus on other things for the Village. We don't want the totality of our resources and
brain power consumed by this in the beginning of the year. When we could be looking at other
things in other ways to enrich the Village. So, [ mean, it's a potential ordinance... Williams: And 1
Jjust add it to it and that's why I started this list. Because we do have a lot of ordinances we need to
put in place. And so, feel free to just add to it as we talk. And then at some point we'll start getting
to them. Hardin: Madam Chair, you are keeping a list of things you have. Are they on? Are we
together? Do you have the same thing she has on her list that we've been waiting on? Maybe you're
keeping a list... Nikolic: Mines were requests. Williams: 1 can work off the same document it
doesn’t matter, Hardin: Okay, I just want to make sure that we're talking apples and apples here.
Nikolic: Right, these [ thought these were potential ordinances relating to finance. Williams: Yes
they are. Hardin: That's why [ was just... If you have anything refated to finance. So, we are all on
the same page so we can keep this going. Because we've really got some great momentum going
now. Williams: Do we have the document? Do [ have access to it? Nikolic: Tanya, so this was the
fast thing with that. When [ met with her in her office. She said that in order for her to update it. She
has to go through the minutes to make sure she has everything. So, [ told her there was no pressure
to give it to us in this round. But when she goes through the minutes, she that's how she's updating
it. And of course, we can send stuff to her and say, here, put this in, drop this in. I asked you to do a
Google Sheet so we could do it. But she said that there was no way, that that isn't proper. Because it
isn’t a village... Williams: (inaudible) can't work with Google. Nikolic: Right, so maybe talk to her.
As a way for us to be able to individually add our request. To take some of that workload off of her.
But for now, she's the only one that has access to it. And [ don't know if it's a good idea if too many
people put stuff in there. So, [ just leave it with her and let her update it. Or we can talk about how
we can enter it or find a system when she circulates it. Williams: "1l find out because it would be
helpful if it was all in one place. Thompson: 1 had Jim put together legislation as well. I might as
well bring it up now briefly, | know it's late. But, when they did like the audit on the CARES. They
had to give them all these vouchers when there were some things they deemed it wasn't eligible to
buy. So, they've had several communities that have had this problem. So, what they're doing is, they
are saying. If you take the expenses that were deemed it wasn't eligible. We'll let you swap the
expenses to show that you paid for police and fire for the amount that you use, that they're
ineligible. So, they gave me a template of the legislation. And [ have Jim review, it’s in his court
right now. To put together the legislation, saying, okay, you spent this much. We'll let you swap it if
you give us the ledgers for Police and Fire. And no harm, no foul, so that's coming down the pike to
you. Hardin: I'm so lost. Thompson: But I just had to bring it to your attention. Williams: I mean,
you could send that to us in writing where they're allowing that permissible use. CARES Act was in
2021 when Covid first happened. Hardin: Got it. Williams: It was the funds that they released.
But CARES Act moneys had to be expended by, I think, September 20th. Thompson: We
expended them but when he did that audit it was some things that (inaudible). A lot of communities
are having this problem, he explained it to me. He said, well, we're doing if they spent something,
we let themn swap it. If you prove that you paid your Police and Fire that was responding for a



Safety. Williams: CARES Act funds were very restrictive, ARPA funds were broader. You had to
spend CARES Act exactly how they told you. Hardin: I recall Williams: ARPA was created to be
kind of like a catch all. Hardin: Right, but can I be real upfront? Thompson: Yeah. Hardin: I
asked the Mayor when we were spending money. When we made the serenity spot at Mount Zion.
[s that a part of that? Thompson: No. Hardin: Okay. Thompson: It was more related to me buying
a financial system. [ bought it, 1 tried to explain it to him. We had been like 30 years with this old
system. It was becoming unsupportive. So, since they had all our information, I kind of just
upgraded to this new VIP. Including the pay roll module. So, when they looked at it, they said it
was an ineligible. But they say this is what we're doing with communities. If you have Council, pass
legislation in this form saying, okay, we know we didn't spend this properly, we'll let you swap it. If
you prove to us that you paid your Police and Fire for your amount, and that's what they want me to
do. So, | gave the template to Jim, he's crafting it, for us. And we will have that in work session.
Hardin: Okay, well, just like we're going to work with you. Because nobody is trying to do
anything dishonest. Thompson: Right. Hardin: If we can help each other be compliant, that's the
objective. Thompson: Okay. Hardin: Nobody is throwing you under the bus, and [ don’t expect
you to do us that way. Davis: The projects, are we voting on that tomorrow? Are they going to be in
legislation? All those projects that we had today? Thompson: I think his projects are going to be
forthcoming and legislation form. Davis: That’s what [ wondered. Thompson: But I showed you
that 201, you can accomplish all of those projects. Hardin: And we can afford to do so? Matlock:
We can afford to do this project? Thompson: Yeah, you can get through it. Hardin: Oh, money,
our Clerk needs a system. To come out of the stone age and into the 21st century with our minutes.
But to accomplish that, she stated there's equipment she needs to buy. Thompson: Yeah. Hardin:
Could you get the price out the computer and whatever the software is? Thompson: She went and
got the quotes and everything? Hardin: I'm pretty sure. Williams: We’d need a report on that.
Thompson: When [ talk to Tanya, she kind of knows what she needs. And she knows the program
she’s looking at? Williams: Yes. Thompson: Okay, then when we buy something like that, it’s
under Council’s budget? Williams: it will have to be, it’s ours. Hardin: I want to price it so it
doesn't waste so much time. Williams: Thank you for reminding me, something separately. I want
us to go a step further with this cash that we're dropping. Because the state auditors clearly said that
it was a bit unorthodox and asked us to create the legislation. [ talked to Carlean Perez today. And |
told her that I thought there needed to be an extra step of when people are coming to bring the egg
to get the cash. There should be some type of sign out sheet that money is transferring from one
hand to the next. So maybe just a last name of street address. A signature or Yes. I'm also a villager.
Something needs to happen so that we can track it. We’'re not tracking that money. We're essentially
saying, yes, we legislate you to drop $1,000 from a plane. But we don't know who is going to, or if
the egg drop is even happening, essentially. What we think is happening, but we need
documentation to show how it happened and who it happened with. Thompson: So, sign in sheet,
they would come and get the money from Carlean. Maybe their address... Hardin: Can [ say one
more thing? Apparently this is quite unorthodox or something. Because every year that this
happens, we have to get an act of Congress. So, why are you putting money in it? Put some candy
or something, Williams: Yeah, we may need to... Thompson: Last year for money and (inaudible).
Williams: How much is the helicopter? Nikolic: $1,500. Williams: Yeah, we could do something
that's less, red flag? Hardin: As a matter of fact, talk to the Mayor. And let him know that I'm not
forth putting the money in here. That's crazy. Williams: But it’s also a safety risk because Carlean
talks about older kids running over bigger kids trying to get to the money. Hardin: It's candy and
it's fun, I'm glad you brought it up. I'm not putting money in an Easter egg. (inaudible) Thompson:
They didn’t get the money yet; I usually have to go to the bank. I get these denominations for
$1,000. Davis: I got two fliers; one I got in my mailbox. Does not list the money. And the first one
that I got from as from Carlean when she passed them about at our meeting had the money on it. So,
is it not money? Thompson: There is going to be money, but they didn't want to advertise that the
$1,000. Davis: Well, maybe we don't need it. (inaudible), Because it doesn't have that. Hardin:
Well, she said she's not going to put money on it on the fliers, but. Matlock: Why would you put



money in there you already getting a helicopter and candy. That’s an extra $1,000 for what?
Williams: You want to finish this conversation tomorrow? Davis: Yes. Hardin: We are going to
do better than that. We’ll tell them tomorrow; we’re not putting no money in no easter egg.
Williams: May I have a motion to adjourn?

Motion to adjourn made by Davis seconded by Nikolic
YES VOTE: Nikolic, Hardin, Matlock, Davis, Williams
MOTION PASSED

Adjourned at 11:29 p.m.
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